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Dear Stockholder,
; fnrmf’ bC 20549
We are pleased to share our Annual Report for 2010 and update you omtix

progress of Saker Av1at1on Servrces Inc N L I ,
Ed .v'ﬂi‘: tf{ . : ‘:.7‘.-"» - ! . l¢

- In Tast year’ s Anriual Report; we “discussed the trethendous” challenges faced:by
‘our”industry and company in-the precedmg twelve months and out hopeful ant1c1pat10n
for 1mproVed condltlons and results in future perrods e e

SN B ;‘ SIS ” , - R P .. : ¢
As ev1denced by the accompanymg reports on Form 10 K and- 10- Q We have n
fact experlenced the anticipated busmess trends and returned _our company to

=proﬁtab111ty .lz'f-‘, AP

S For the year ended December 31 2010 we. generated approx1mately $12 rmlhon
in revenue and produced approximately $1:5, million in net income (including -a- deferred
income tax benefit-of $656,000). By comparison, in the year ended December 31, 2009,
we had revenue of approximately $8.7 million and.net losses. from continuing operations
of approxnnately $330 000 '

......

: Further in the Six months ended June 30 2011 our revenue has mcreased by
__32 9% -to approx1mately $7.35 m11110n as.compared to the same period .in. 2010 . Our
income before income tax expense has more than doubled to approximately $41_5,QQO in
the six months ended June 30 2011 as compared to 2010 o V

In short we beheve that our results prov1de proof of our. strengthened financial
position.

Let’s review the important milestones that enabled our performance and project
well for our future: o

» July 2011 refinancing of debt

» Results from the DowntoWn,Manhattan Heliport

» December 2009 acquisition at Garden City, Kansas

101 Hangar Road e Wilkes-Barre/Scranton International Airport ¢ Avoca, PA 18641
Tel: 570.457.3400 e Fax 570.414.0517



Refinancing of Debt. In Jul; ‘1_2011 rther described in the attached report on
Form 10-Q, we successfully negotrated a refit ancing - effort with Bank of America. As
part.of th1s arrangement, we reduced the. total amount of our debt by almost 45% while
correspondmgly reducingdebt service. expense by over’ 65% In conJuncuon with our
1mproved business results, we believe this refinancing will increase our financial capacity
to drive fiiture growth

Results from Downtown Manhattan Heliport. As we touched upon in last
"year s letter, we: had hlgh expectations for 1mproved Tresiilts at the Hellport for two
reasons. In April 2010, our Heliport became the only fac111ty in New York City to
-support sightseeing activity and, in September 2010, we introduced the sale of fuel for the
first, time -at. this facility. .These factors, ‘along with a rebound in tourism in New York
City, combined to drive revenue increases of 47.6%. and 81.4% i in the six. months ended
June 30, 2011 and year ended December 31, 2010, respectlvely, as compared to the same
’t1me perlods mthe pnor years ‘ TR L . :

Garden Clty Acqulsmon As reported in last year s letter in December 2009
we consummated the acqu1s1t10n of an FBO competitor at Garden City (Kansas) Reglonal
'A1rport Results from' this acqu1s1t10n ‘have been-positive, driving: increases in earmngs
‘before taxés, depreciation and amortization from this location of 53:6% and 332.7% ‘in
the ‘six ‘moriths ended'June 30; 2011 and year ended December 31 2010 respectlvely, as
‘compated to the same time period in the prior years, o e G

We believe that the summary above and the Annual Report for 2010 attest to a
solid - improvement in’ our business ‘results. ‘Management “firmly - be11eves that the
'-dec1s1ons made and actions taken have created the opportumty for the company to thrlve

‘in ipcoming quarters: and years Sy

We appreciate your support in the past and look forward to sharmg w1th you the
future success of Saker Aviation Sérvices; Inc. ‘ AN ‘

Sincerely,

Ronald J. Ricciardi - i
“President & CEO" s -
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
* WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

.. FORM10-K .- -
(Mark One) »
B ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010

OR

a TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period from to

Commission File Number: 000-52593

SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Nevada 87-0617649
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
101 Hangar Road
Avoca, PA ' 18641
(Address of principal executive offices) _ (Zip Code)
(570) 457-3400

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act: None
Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: Common Stock, $.001 par value.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.
Yes (] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the

preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).
Yes d No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of the Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

) - Yes O No a
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2
of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer [ Smaller Reporting Company E



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes g ST No

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price at

which the common equity was last sold as of the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter;
$675,232. N

As of March 29, 2011, the Registrant had 33,164,453 shares of its Common Stock, $.001 par. value, issued and outstanding.

Documents incorporated by reference: None
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RESULTS COULD DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE SET FORTH IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS.
CERTAIN FACTORS THAT MIGHT CAUSE SUCH A DIFFERENCE ARE DISCUSSED IN ITEM 1A, “RISK FACTORS”
AND ITEM 7, “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION” OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K. SEE ALSO “FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS”
WITHIN SUCH ITEM 7 OF THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K. ‘
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PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

Saker Av1at10n Services, Inc. (”Saker”) through its subsidiaries (Saker and its subsidiarjes collectively are referred
to herein as the ”Company” “we”, “us” and “our”), operates in the fixed base operation (“FBO”) segment of the general
aviation industry. FBOs provide ground- based services such as fueling and hangaring for general aviation, commercial,
and military aircraff; aircraft maintenance, and other miscellaneous services. We also provide consulting services for a

non-owned FBO facﬂlty and serve as the operator of a heliport.

We were formed on January 17, 2003 (our date of inception) as a proprietorship and were incorporated in Arizona
on January 2, 2004. . We became a public company as a result of a reverse merger transaction on August 20, 2004 with
Shadows Bend Development, Inc., an inactive public Nevada corporation and changed our name to FBO Air, Inc. On
December 12, 2006, we-changed our name to FirstFlight, Inc. On September 2, 2009, we changed our name to Sakerr
Aviation Services, Inc. .

Our business activities are carried out as an FBO at the 'Wi]kes-Barre/\Scranton (Pennsylvania) ,hlterna,tional__.v
Airport, as an FBO at the Garden City (Kansas) Regional Airport, as the operator of the Downtown Manhattan (New
York) Heliport, and as a consultant to the FBO and operator of the Niagara Falls (New York) International Airport.

The Wilkes-Barre facility became part of our company as a result of our acquisition of Tech Aviation Service, Inc.
(“Tech”) in March 2005. The Garden City facility became part of our company as a result of our acquisition of the FBO.
assets of Central Plains Av1at10n, Inc. (”CP ") in March 2005 :

The New York heliport fac111ty became part of our company through the award of a concession agreement by thie
City of New York to operate the Downtown Manhattan Heliport, which we a551gned to our subsidiary, FirstFlight
Hehports LLCd / b / a Saker Aviation Services (“FFH"): . : .

The FBO segment of the general aviation industry is hlghly fragmented populated by, accordlng to the Natlonal
Air Transportation Association (“NATA”), over 3,000 operators who serve. customers at one or more of the over 3,000
airport facilities across the country that have at least one paved 3,000-foot runway. The vast majority of these Companles
are single location operators. NATA characterizes companies with operations at three or more airports as “chains.” An
operation with FBOs in at-least two distinctive regions of the country is considered a “national” chain while multlple
locations within a single region are considered “regional” chains.

We believe the general aviation market has been historically cyclical, with revenue correlated to general U.S.
economic conditions. Although not truly seasonal in nature, historically the spring and summer months tend to generate
higher levels of revenue and our operations follow that trend.

Suppliers and Raw Materials

We obtain aviation fuel, component parts and other supplies from a variety of sources, generally from more than
one supplier. Our suppliers and sources are based in the U.S. and other countries arid we believe that our sources of
materials are adequate for our needs for the foreseeable future. We do not believe the loss of any one supplier would have
a material adverse effect on our business or results of operations. Our principal materials are aviation fuel and aircraft
parts. We generally purchase our supplies on the open market, where certain commodities have ﬂuctuated 1n prlce-
srgmflcantly in recent years. We have not experlenced any srgmﬁcant shortage of our key supplies. :

Marketing and Sales

The main goal of our marketing and sales efforts is to increase traffic at our facilities, which is intended to drive
revenue through the incremental sale of products and services. Our primary marketing tactic in this regard is to fociis
advertising efforts in the environments (web, periodical, industry publications) where the pilot and aviation-user
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community might be introduced to our brand name. We intend to continue to invest in modest improvements to our
sales and marketing strategies to drive revenue growth.

Government Approvals

The aviation services that we provide are generally performed on municipal or other government owned real
estate properties. Accordingly, at times we will need to obtain certain consents or approvals from those government
entities in conjunction with'our operations. These consents are typically in the form of a lease agreement; as is the case at
our Pennsylvama and Kansas facilities, or a concession agreement, as is the case with our New York facility. There can be
no assurance that we shall obtain further consents or approvals on favorable terms or be able to renew existing consents
or approvals on favorable terms, if at all. : :

Government Regulation

We are subject to a variety of governmental laws and regulations that apply to companies in the aviation
industry. These include compliance with the Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) rules and regulations and local,
regional and national rules'and regulations as they relate to environmental matters. We believe we are in compliance with
and intend to comply with all applicable government regulations. The adoption of new regulations could result in
increased costs and have an adverse impact on our results of operations. In the event we are unable to remain compliant
with applicable rules and regulations, our business may be adversely affected. ‘

Competition

The FBO segment of the aviation services industry, the vast majority of which are independent, single location
operators, is competitive in both pricing and'service due to the amount of flexibility for aircraft in transit to. choose from a
number of FBO options within a 200-300 mile radius. We are the sole FBO at each of our current facilities. As such, we
face no direct on-airport competition but do realize competitive pressure on prlcmg and services from FBO fac1l1t1es at
other an'ports dependmg on 1nbound passenger s travel flexibility. ‘ :

We plan to grow our business through both mternal development of exrstmg resources and facilities and through
the potential acquisition of other related business. We anticipate that our larger size will provide us with greater buying
power from suppliers, and therefore provide us with lower costs. Lower costs would allow for a more aggressive pricing
policy against some competition. More importantly, we believe that the higher level of customer service offered in our
facilities will allow us to draw additional aircraft traffic and thus eompete successfully agamst other FBOs of any size.

There can be no:assurance -that we will be able to Compete successfully in the hlghly competitive aviation

industry.
Costs and: Effects of Complymg With Environmental Laws

We are sub]ect to a varlety of federal state, and local envrronmental laws and regulahons mcludlng those
governing health and safety requirements, the discharge of pollutants into the air or water, the management and disposal
of hazardous substances and wastes and the responsibility to investigate and clean-up contaminated sites that are or were
owned, leased, operated or used by us or our predecessors. Some of these laws and regulations require us to obtain
permits, which contain terms and-conditions that impose limitations on our ability to emit and discharge hazardous
materials into the environment and periodically may. be subject to modification, renewal and revocation by issuing
authorities. Fines and penalties may be imposed for non-compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations
and the failure to have or to comply with the terms and conditions of requ1red permits. We intend to comply.with these
laws and regulations, however, from time to time, our operations may not be in full compliance with the terms and
conditions of our permits or licenses. We periodically review our procedures and policies for compliance. with
environmental laws and requirements. We believe that our operations are in material compliance with apphcable
environmental laws and requirements and that any non-compliance would not be expected to result in us incurring
material liability or cost to achieve compliance. Historically, the costs of achieving and maintaining compliance with
environmental laws and requirements have not been material. We consider the cost of compliance with environmental
laws a normal cost of operations. ‘ :



Employees

" As of December 31, 2010, we employed 64 persons, of whom 43 were emiployed on a full-time basis, one of whom
was an executive officer. Substantially all of our personnel are employed at our operatiens in Pennsylvania, New York
and Kansas.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The following risk factors relate to our 6perations:

We may have a need for additional financing to expand our business.

 Certain of the potentlal sellers of FBOs we may seek to acqmre in the future may accept shares of our common
stock or other securities as payment by us for the acquisition. However, we believe that it is likely that most will seek cash
payments, whether paid at the closing or in post-closing installment payments. There can be no assurance that our
operations will generate sufficient cash flow to meet these acquisition obligations. Accordingly, we anticipate the need to -
seek additional equity or debt financing to meet any cash requirements for acquisitions. Any such financing will be
dependent -on -general market. conditions and the stock market's evaluation of our performance and potential.
Accordingly, we can give no assurance that we will obtam such equity or debt fmancmg and, even if we do, that the terms
would be satisfactory to us. o :

We could be adversely affected by increases in fuel -ﬁricés.

Our operations could be mgm.ﬁcantly affected by the ava11ab1hty and prlce of jet fuel A s1gmf1cant increase in ]et
fuel prices would most likely have a material lmpact on our ability. to achieve and maintain profitability unless we are
able to pass on such costs to our customers. Due to the competitive nature of the mdustry, our ability to pass on increased
fuel prices by increasing our rates is uncertain. Likewise, any potential benefit of lower fuel prices may be offset by
increased competition and lower revenue in general. While we do.not currently anticipate a significant reduction in fuel
availability, dependency on foreign imports of crude oil and the possibility of changes in government policy on jet fuel
production, transportation and marketing make it impossible to predict the future availability of jet fuel. If there are new
outbreaks of hostility or other conflicts in oil producing areas.or elsewhere, there could be a reduchon in the availability
of jet fuel or significant increases in costs to our business; as well as to the entire aviation industry.

The continued threat of 1 terrorist actzons may result in less.demand for prwate amatwn und as a result, our revenue may
be adversely aﬁ‘ected and we may not.be able to continue successful operations.

Terrorist acnons mvolvmg publlc and pr1vate aircraft may have a significant adverse J_mpact on us. As a result of
these actions, individuals and corporate customers may cease using private aircraft as a means of transportation or reduce
their use of such aircraft or we could become subject to burdensome regulations that would lower our results of
operations. In either event, we would be unable to maintain sales and may be unable to continue our operations on a
successful basis.

The FBO segment of the aviation services industry in which we operate is fiercely competitive.

We compete with national, regional, and local FBO operators. Many of our competitors have been in business
longer than we have and may have greater financial resources available to them. Having greater financial resources will
make it easier for these competitors to absorb higher fuel prices and other increases in expenses. In addition, these
competitors might seek acquisitions in regions and markets competitive to us. Accordmgly, we can give no assurance that
we will be able to successfully compete in our industry. :

Our business as an FBO is subject to extensive govei‘nmentul regulation.

 FBOs are sub]ect to extensive regulatory requlrements that could result in significant costs. For example, the FAA,
from tlme to time, issues. directives and other regulations relating to the management, maintenance and operation of
facilities. Compliance with those requirements may cause us to incur 51gmf1cant expenditures.
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Additional laws, regulations and charges may be proposed that could significantly increase the cost of our
operations or reduce overall revenue. We cannot provide assurance that laws or regulations enacted in the future will not
adversely affect our business and results of operations. ' ‘ -

We must maintain and add key management and other personnel.

Our future success will be heavily dependent on the performance of our principal executive officer and our
managers. We have entered into an employment agreement with our President and Chief Executive Officer, Ronald J.
Ricciardi. Our growth and future success will depend, in large part, on the continued contributions of Mr. Ricciardi and
other key individuals, as well as our ability to motivate and retain these personnel or hire other persons. Although we
believe we will be able to retain and hire qualified personnel, we can give no assurance that we will be successful in
retaining and recruiting such personnel in sufficient numbers to increase revenue, maintain profitability, or successfully
implement our growth strategy. ! ’

We are subject to environmental laws that could impose significant costs on us and the failure to comply with such laws
could subject us to sanctions and material fines and expenses. . S L

We are subject to a variety of federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those governing
the discharge of pollutants into the air or water, the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes and
the responsibility to investigate and clean-up contaminated sites that are or were owned, leased, operated or used by us
or our predecessors. Some of these laws and regulations require us to obtain permits, which contain terms and conditions
that impose limitations on our ability to emit and discharge hazardous materials into the environment and periodically
may be subject to modification, renewal and revocation by issuing authorities. Fines and penalties may be imposed for
non-compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations and the failure to have or to comply with the terms
and conditions of required permits. We intend to coniply with these laws and regulations, however, from time to time,
our operations may not be in full compliance with the terms and conditions of our permits. We periodically review our
procedures and policies for compliance with environmental laws and requirements. We believe that our operations are in
material compliance with applicable environimental laws, requirements and permits and that any lapses in compliance
would not be expected to result in us incurring material liability or cost to achieve compliance. Historically, the costs of
achieving and maintaining compliance with environmental laws, and requirements and permits have not been material;
however, the operafion our business entails risks' in these areas, and a failure by us to comply with applicable
environmental laws, regulélti'on’s, or permits could result in civil or criminal fines, penalties, enforcement actions, third
party claims for property damage and personal injury, requirements to clean up property or to pay for the costs of
cleanup, or regulatory or judicial orders enjoining or curtailing operations or requiring corrective measures. Moreover, if
applicable environmental laws and regulations, or-the interpretation or enforcement thereof, become more stringent in
the future, we could incur capital or operating costs beyond those currently anticipated and our business and results of
operations could be harmed. ‘ ' ' I ST

The following risk factors relate to our common stock:
There is no active market for our common stock.

To date, trading of our common stock has been sporadic and nominal‘in volume. In addition, there are ohly a
limited number of broker-dealers trading our common stock. As a result, there is little, if any, liquidity in our common

stock. We can provide no assurance that an active trading market will ‘ever devélop.
Our common stock is subject to the penny stock rules.

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) has adopted-a set of rules called the penny stock
rules that regulate broker-dealers with respect to trading in securities with a bid price of less than $5.00. These rules do-
not apply to securities registered on certain national securities exchanges (including the Nasdaq Stock Market), provided
that current price and volume information regarding transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange or
system. Our stock is not listed on stich an exchange and we have no expectation'that our common stock will be listed on
such an exchange in the future. The “penny stock” rules also require a broker-dealer to deliver to the customer a
standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the Commission that provides information about penny stocks and
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the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market. Additionally, the broker-dealer must provide the customer with
other information. The “penny stock” rules require that, prior to a transaction in a penny stock, the broker-dealer must
determine in writing that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser. The broker-dealer must also receive
the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction. These disclosure requirements may reduce the level of trading
activity in the secondary market for a stock that is subject to the “penny stock” rules. If a market ever does develop for
our common stock, as to which we can give no assurance, and it should remain subject to the “penny stock” rules, holders
of our'common stock may find it more difficult to sell their shares of our common stock. Because we are subject to the
“penny stock” rules, our stock lacks the liquidity of stock not subject to such rules. :

Potential additional financings, the granting of additional stock options and possibly anti-dilution provisions in our
warrants could further dilute our existing stockholders.

As of March 29, 2011, there were 33,164,453 shares outstanding. If all of our outstanding common stock purchase
warrants and options were exercised, there would be 42,014,453 shares outstanding, an increase of almost 27%. Any
further issuances due to additional equity financings or the granting of additional options or p0551b1y the antl-dlluhon
provisions in our warrants will further dilute our existing stockholders.

We do not anticipate paying dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We intend to retain future earnings, if any, to fund our operations and to expand our business. Accordingly, we
do not an’ac1pate paying cash dividends on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable future

Our Board of Directors’ rzght to issue additional shares of preferred stock could adversely 1mpact the rights of holders of
our common stock.

Our board of directors currently has the right, with respect to the 9,999,154 authorized shares of our preferred
stock, to authorize the issuance of one or more series of our preferred stock with such voting, dividend and other rights as
our directors determine. Such action can be taken by our board without the approval of the holders of our common stock.
However, a majority of the independent directors must approve such issuance under a policy adopted by the Saker board
of directors on March 19, 2006. Accordmgly, the holders of any new series of preferred stock could be granted voting
rights that reduce the voting power of the holders of our common stock. For example, the preferred holders could be
granted the right to vote on a merger as a separate class even if the merger would not have an adverse effect on their
rights. This right, if granted, would give such preferred holders a veto with respect to any merger proposal. Alternatively,
such preferred holders could be granted a large number votes per share while voting as a single class with the holders of
our common stock, thereby diluting the voting power of the holders of our common stock. In addition, the holders of any
new series of preferred stock could be given the option to be redeemed in cash in the event of a merger. This would make
an acquisition of us less attractive to a potential acquirer. Thus, our board could authorize the issuance of shares of the

-new series of preferred stock in order to defeat a proposal for the acquisition of our company which a majority of the
holders of our common stock otherwise favor.

Our common stock may not continue to be traded on the OTC Bulletin Board.

We cannot provide any assurance that our common stock will continue to be eligible to trade on the OTC Bulletin
Board. Should our common stock cease to trade on the OTC Bulletin Board and fail to qualify for listing on a stock
exchange (including Nasdaq), our common stock would be trading only in the “pink sheets.” Such trading market
generally provides an even less liquid market than the OTC Bulletin Board. In such event, stockholders may find it more
difficult to trade their shares of our common stock or to obtain accurate, current information concerning market prices for
our common stock.

Our management team currently has influential voting power.
As of March 29, 2011, our executive officers, directors and their family members and associates collectively could
vote 7,706,733 shares, or 23.2%, of the 33,164,453 shares of the outstanding voting shares. Accordingly, and, because there

is no cumulative voting for directors, our executive officers and directors are currently in a position to influence the
election of all of the directors of Saker. The management of our company is controlled by our board of directors, currently
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comprised of three independent directors, a director who is a managing partner of a law firm which provides legal
services to us, and one executive officer/director.

ITEM 1B. - UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of March 29, 2011, we lease office space at the following locations:

Location _ Purpose Space Annual Rental Expiration

101 HangarRoad:- .« - .  Pennsylvamia- .. _ - 24000 . .. - . . August2l,

Avoca, Pennsylyania |~ FBOlocation ... . . squarefeet . $ .. 75000 . . 2013 .
2117 S. Air Service Road U _Kansas . . 17,640 R o cember 31, .
Garden City, Kansas - o FBOlocation =~ ‘squarefeet  § 12,420 A< B

We believe that our space is adequate and suitable for our immediate needs. Additional hangar space may be
required for our operations in the future. No definitive plans to lease any additional space have been developed at the
time of this report. Should additional hangar space be required, there can be no assurance that such space will be
available or available on commercially reasonable terms.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be a party to one or more claims or disputes which may result in litigation. We do not,
however, presently expect that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operatlons

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED)



PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for Common Equify

Our common stock is traded on the OTC Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”) under the symbol SKAS.OB. The OTCBB is a
regulated quotation service that displays real-time quotes, last-sale prices and volume information in over-the-counter
(“OTC”) equity securities. Our common stock is only traded on a limited or sporadic basis and should not be deemed to
constitute an established public trading market. OTC quotatlons reflect intra-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-
down, or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

~ The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices for the common stock as reported on the
OTCBB for the past two most recent fiscal years.

Common Stock

Quarterly Period Ended | | High Low

March3,209 ..U s om008 008
Fane30,2000 et s e s s b m R s - 005 $ 0035
September 30, 2009 e s 0035 00107
December 31,2000 . | % 0120 $ 0015
Ma¥ch-31',2010 I R o o R $\ 10030 $ 0012
Jane30,2010 | s o080 s 0010
September 30, 2010 - , | $ ‘0.067 $ 0014
December31,2010 0 i S §8 00858 0021

Holders

As of March 29, 2011 there were approximately 620 holders of record of our common stock. This number does
not include beneficial owners of the common stock whose shares are held in the names of various broker-dealers, clearing
agencies, banks, and other fiduciaries.

Dividends

Since our inception we have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We intend to
retain future earnings to finance the growth and development of our business and future operations. Therefore, we do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Repurchases

We did not repurchase shares of our common stock during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable. » . -

ITEM?7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
. OF OPERATION

Forward-looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Forward-
looking statements can be identified by words such as “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “seeks,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“expects” and similar references to future periods. These statements may include projections of revenue, provisions for
doubtful accounts, income or loss, capital expenditures, repayment of debt, other financial items; statements regarding
our plans and objectives for future operations, acquisitions, divestitures and other transactions, statements of future
economic performance, statements of the assumptions underlying or relating to any of the foregoing statements, and
statements that are other than statements of historical fact.

Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions regarding our business, the
economy and other future conditions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to inherent
uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. Our actual results may differ materially
from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements. We caution you therefore against relying on any of these
forward-looking statements. They are neither statements of historical fact nor guarantees or assurances of future
performance. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking
statements include our services and pricing, general economic conditions, our ability to raise additional capital, our
ability to obtain the various approvals and permits for the acquisition and operation of FBOs and the other risk factors
contained under Item 1A of this report.

Any forward-looking statement made by us in this report speaks only as of the date on which it is made. Factors
or events that could cause our actual results to differ may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict
all of them. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new
information, future developments or otherwise, except as may be required by law.

Overview

Our long-term strategy is to increase our sales through growth within our FBO operations. To do so, we may
expand our geographic reach and product offering through strategic acquisitions and improved market penetration
within the markets we serve. We expect that any future acquisitions or product offerings would be a direct complement
to our current FBO operations.

If we are able to grow our business as planned, we anticipate that our larger size would provide us with greater
buying power from suppliers, and therefore provide us with lower costs. Lower costs would allow for a more aggressive
pricing policy against some competition. More importantly, we believe that the higher level of customer service offered in
our facilities will allow us to draw additional aircraft to our facilities and thus allow us to compete successfully against
other FBOs of any size.



Summary Financial Information

The summary financial data set forth below is derived from and should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, filed as part of this report.-

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31,
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data: . 2010 2009
, ~ (in thousands, except for share and per share data) S R et
Revenue - continuing operations $ 12,080 $ 8,700
Income (loss) - continuing operations before income tax benefit - $ 817 § (332)
Net income (loss) - dlscontmued operatlons $ - $ (78)
Net income (loss)- - : Vo 8 1473 $ (411)
Net income (loss) per share - ba51c contmued operanons $ 004 $ (0.01)
Net income (loss) per share - basic - discontinued operatlons $ - $ (0.00)
Net income (loss) per share - basic $ 004 $ (0.01)
Net income (loss) per share - diluted - continued operations $ 004 $ (0.01)
Net income (loss) per share - diluted - discontinued operations $ o= % (0.00)
Net-income (loss) per share - diluted . SR S R A SRR .. 004 % - (0.01)
Weighted average number of shares - basic : ; . 33,164,453 : 34 314 400
Weighted average number of shares —diluted - =~ RENEEE s e 33,596,453 . 34,314,400
: , December 31, . December 31,
Balance Sheet Data: (in thousands) . 2010 2009
Workmg capital (deficit) $ 1,012 % (573)
Total assets $ 9446 $ 6,547
Total liabilities $ 3,945 $ - 3461
Stockholders’ equity $ 5501 $ - 3,086
$ 9,446 $ 6,547

Total liabilities and Stockholders” equity

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operatlons gives effect only to our continuing
operatlons

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

REVENUE

Revenue increased by 38.7 percent to approximately $12,080,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010 as
compared with corresponding prior-year period revenue of approximately $8,700,000.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, revenue associated with the operation of the Downtown Manhattan
Heliport (“Heliport”) increased by 81.4 percent to approximately $6,700,000. Revenue associated with the sale of jet fuel,
aviation gasoline and related items increased by 14.9 percent to approximately $4,821,000 as compared to the same period
in the prior year. Revenue associated with maintenance activities decreased by 31.8 percent to approximately $493,000 as
compared to the same period in the prior year. Revenue associated with the leasing of aircraft and office space along with
the management of non-owned FBO facilities decreased by 32.5 percent to approximately $65,000 in the year ended
December 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in the prior year.

The increase in revenue associated with the Heliport was in large part related to an increase in helicopter landings
and passenger counts in the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in the prior year. It was also
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pacted by the introduction of fuel sales, which were initiated in September 2010 and, consequently, represent revenue
.n the year ended December 31, 2010 that has no comparison in the same period in 2009.

The increases in revenue associated with the sale of jet fuel, aviation gasoline and related items was related toa
combination of a slightly higher volume along with higher average fuel prices as compared with the prior year. We
generally price our fuel products on a fixed dollar margin basis. As the cost of fuel increases, the corresponding customer
price increases as well. If volume is constant, this methodology yields higher revenue but at comparable gross margins.

The decreases in maintenance revenue were due to decreases in both charges for labor services and for parts. The
primary reason for the decreases in both categories was a generally lower level of activity associated with jet aircraft
domiciled at the Pennsylvania facility.

The decreases in revenue associated with the leasing of aircraft and office space along with the management on
non-owned FBO facilities was directly related to a planned reduction in fees associated with the management of non-
owned FBO facilities.

GRO-SS PROFIT

~ Total gross profit increased 68.2 percent to approximately $6,440,000 in the year ended December 31, 2010 as
compared with the year ended December 31, 2009. Gross profit as a percent of revenue increased to 53.3 percent in the
year-ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 44.0 percent in the same period in the prior year. The impact of the
Heliport operation was a major factor in the increase in gross profit, contributing approximately $5,040,000 in 2010 as
compared to approximately $2,486,000 in 2009. In the absence of the Heliport, gross profit in the year ended December
31, 2010 would have been 26.1 as a percent of revenue as compared to 26.8 in the same period in prior year. The decrease
in gross profit on this adjusted percent of revenue basis is attributable to generally higher average fuel cost as descrlbed
above.

OPERATING EXPENSE

Selling, General and Administrative ~ Operatiohs

Selling, general and administrative (“SGé&A”) expenses associated with our operations were approximately
$5,126,000 in the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase of approximately $1,700,000 or 49.7 percent as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2009. Without the introduction of the Heliport, SG&A associated with our operations would
have increased by approximately $210,000 or 16.5 percent.

SG&A associated with our operations, as a percentage of revenue, was 42.4 percent for the year ended December
31, 2010 as compared with 39.3 percent in the corresponding prior year period. Once again, the introduction of the
Heliport was a major factor. In the absence of the Heliport, SG&A associated with our operations, as a percent of

revenue, would have been 27.6 percent of revenue; a more meaningful comparison to the 25.4 percent in the year ended
December 31, 2009.

Selling, General and Administrative - Corporate

Corporate expense was approximately $218,000 in the year ended December 31, 2010, representing a decrease of
approximately $575,000 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2010. The decreases were largely driven by a
combination of lower stock-based compensation expenses (approximately $250,000), legal fees (approximately $200,000),
and lower audit and accounting-related expenses (approximately $90,000) in the year ended December 31, 2010 as
compared to the same period in 2009.

OPERATING INCOME

Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2010 was approximately $1,100,000 as compared to an
operating loss of approximately $388,000 in the year ended December 31, 2009. Improvements on a year-over-year basis
were driven by a combination of higher levels of revenue leading to increased gross profit combined with significantly
lower levels of corporate expenses, all of which are described above.
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Interest Income/Expense

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $40,632, as compared to $14,292 in year ended
December 31, 2009 with the increase largely attributable to interest booked in connection with notes receivable. Interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $172,961, as compared to $135,510 in the same period in 2009 with the
increase largely attributable to interest payments on notes payable.

Net Income Per Share

Net income from continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 was approximately $1,473,000 as
compared to a net loss of approximately $333,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

‘Basic and diluted net income per share for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $0.04. Basic and diluted net
loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $0.01.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2010, we had cash of $1,541,992 and had a working capital surplus of $1,012,174. We
generated revenue of approximately $12,080,000 and net income of approximately $1,473,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

We have a revolving line of credit agreement (the “Credit Facility”) dated March 3, 2009 and made jointly and
severally by us and Airborne, Inc., a former subsidiary we divested in March of 2009 (“ Airborne”), in favor of Birch Hill
Capital, LLC (“Birch Hill”). The Credit Facility requires interest payments based on outstanding balances at an interest
rate of prime plus 350 basis points (6.75% as of December 31, 2010) and is payable upon demand by Birch Hill. Birch Hill
retains a first lien against all of our assets and the assets of Airborne. We and Airborne are joint and several guarantors of
borrowings under the Credit Facility. In the event of a sale of Airborne, Birch Hill is entitled to receive the first
distribution of any related proceeds in the full amount of any outstanding against the Credit Facility.

On May 7, 2010, the Birch Hill Credit Facility was modified such that the maximum line of credit was reduced to
$500,000, which is fully extended at December 31, 2010, and the remaining $500,000 was reclassified into a note with a-36-
month amortization with a 24-month balloon payment of outstanding principal and interest at 7% per year.

We are also party to a Loan Agreement with EuroAmerican Investment Corp. (“EuroAmerican”), pursuant to
which EuroAmerican agreed to loan the Company an aggregate of up to $750,000. The EuroAmerican loan is evidenced
by a Promissory Note we delivered to EuroAmerican. The unpaid principal amount under the Promissory Note accrues
interest at the annual rate of 12% and is payable in monthly interest only payments until maturity, at which time the
entire principal balance and any accrued but unpaid interest is payable in full. On May 7, 2010, the maturity date of the
EuroAmerican Note was extended from February 27, 2011 to March 1, 2012.

We are party to a concession agreement with the City of New York for the operation of the Downtown Manhattan
Heliport (the “Heliport”). Under this agreement, we must pay the greater of 18% of the first $5 million in program year
gross receipts and 25% of gross receipts in excess of $5 million or minimum annual guaranteed payments that began at
$1.2 million in Year 1, which commenced on November 1, 2008, and increase to approximately $1.7 million in Year 10,
which expires on October 31, 2018. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we incutred with the City of New York
$1,317,488 in concession fees, which exceeded the minimum annual guarantee payment, and is included in the cost of
revenue. We also agreed, pursuant to this agreement, to make certain capital improvements and safety code compliance
upgrades to the Heliport in the amount of $1,000,000 within two years following the receipt of building permits for the
capital improvements and another $1,000,000 by the end of the fifth year of the Agreement. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, we made approximately $928,000 in capital improvements at the Heliport pursuant to the concession
agreement. We believe that cash flow from the operation of the Heliport will be sufficient to satisfy the minimum annual
guarantee and to fund the capital improvements as requlred under the agreement

We believe that we have sufficient liquidity to sustain our existing business for at least the next twelve months.
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, we had a net increase in cash of $967,145. Our sources and uses.of
funds during this period were as follows:

Cash from Operating Activities -

For the year ended December 31, 2010, net cash provided by operating activities was $2,128,561. This amount
included an increase in operating cash related to net income of $1,472,925 and additions for the following items: (i)
management fees recorded through additional paid in capital, $922,946; (i) depreciation and amortization, $189,102; (iif)
stock-based compensation expense, $18,773; (iv) inventories, $69,994; (v) deposits, $97,489; (vi) accounts payable, $11,915;
(vii) customer deposits, $73,077; and (viii) accrued expenses, $664,990. The increase in cash provided by operating
activities in 2010 was offset by the following decreases: (i) accounts receivable, $550,333; (i) deferred income taxes,
$656,000; and (iii) prepaid expenses, $186,317. For the year ended December 31, 2009, net cash used in operating activities
was $588,237. This amount included a decrease in operating cash related to a net loss of $411,042 and addijtions for the
following items: (i) depreciation and amortization, $147,506; (ii) stock-based compensation expense, $268,435; (iii) accrued
expenses, $482,051; and (iv) customer deposits, $154,270. The increase in cash used in operating activities in 2009 was
offset by the following decreases: (i) accounts payable, $487,772; (ii) deposits, $110,881; (iii) prepaid expenses, $67,610; (iv)
inventories, $47,381; (v) accounts receivable, $28,322; (vi) gain from disposal of subsidiary, $469,262; and (vii) gain on sale
of property and equipment, $18,229. , .

Cash from InvestingvAcl'ivvit'ie‘s

For the year ended December 31, 2010, net cash used in investing activities was $895,152 and was attributable to
the purchase of property and equipment ($1,018,820) offset by proceeds from notes receivable, $123,668. For the year
ended December 31, 2009, net cash:used in investing activities was $1,377,405 and was atiributable to the purchase of
property and equipment ($472,347), issuance of notes receivable ($711,032), and net cash of divested subsidiary ($229,188),
offset by proceeds from the sale of property and equipment, $35,162. : :

Cash from Financing Activities . ' -~

For the year ended December 31, 2010, net cash used in financing activities was $266,264, consisting of proceeds
from notes payable of $102,584 offset by repayment of notes payable of ($368,848). For the year ended December 31, 2009,
net cash provided by financing activities was $1,067,954, consisting of proceeds from notes payable $961,904, plus
proceeds from the sale of minority interest in subsidiary $212,961, offset by repayment of notes payable $106,911.

‘Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any transactions with unconsolidated entities in which we have financial guarantees,
subordinated retained interests, derivative instruments or other contingent arrangements that expose us to material
continuing risks, contingent liabilities or any other obligations under a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that
provides us with financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support.

Critical Accounting Estimates’

Discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, ‘which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. On an ongoing
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to product returns, product and content development expenses,
bad debts, inventories, intangible assets, income taxes, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on experience
and: on various assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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The critical accounting policies which we believe affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements are provided as follows:

Accounts Receivable

We extend credit to large and mid-size companies for. products and services. We have concentrations of credit
risk in that 77.7% of the balance of accounts receivable at December 31, 2010 is made up of only four customers. At
December 31, 2010, accounts receivable in our continuing operations from our four largest accounts amounted to
approximately $355,000 (26.1%), $300,000 (22.1%), $220,000 (16.1%), and $182,000 (13.4%), respectively. We have in place a
security deposit in connection with each of these four receivables. Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated
collectible amounts. Accounts receivable are periodically evaluated for collectability and the allowance for doubtful
accounts is adjusted accordingly. We determine collectability based on our management experience and knowledge of the
customers. : ' ‘

Goodwill and Intangible Assets - -

Goodwill and intangibles that are deemed to-have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but, instead, are to be
reviewed at least annually for impairment. Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment, including the
identification of reporting units, assigning assets and liabilities to reporting units, assigning goodwill to reporting units,
and determining the fair value. Significant judgments reqired to estimate the fair value of reporting units include
estimating future cash flows, determining appropriate discount rates and other assumptions. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and/or goodwill impairment for each reporting
unit. We have recorded goodwill and intangible assets in connection with our acquisitions amounting to $2,468,284
related to continuing operations: We have deterrnined that there was no impairment of goodwill and intangible assets for
continuing operations at December 31, 2010 and 2009. ' ' :

Income Taxes o ‘

'  We account for income taxes under “Accounting for Income Taxes”, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
" recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between their financial statement carrying amounts
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date.

Although we have federal and state net operating losses available for income tax purposes that may be carried
forward to offset future taxable income, the deferred tax assets are subject to a valuation allowance because it is more
likely than not that certain of the deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods. We file income tax
returns in the United States (federal) and in various state and local jurisdictions. In most instances, we are no longer
subject to federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2007.

We recorded a deferred income tax benefit because we believe that, as compared to the year ended December 31,
2009, a continuation or increase in taxable income is more likely than not. The current and anticipated operating results is
in contrast to prior years in which general economic conditions and losses associated with discontinued operations
negatively impacted results. We believe the accounting for deferred tax assets is consistent with the disclosures regarding
current and expected future operating results.

Stock Based Compensation :

Stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards are based on the grant-date fair value. We
recognize these compensation costs over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the option vesting
term.

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected life of the
option, Because our employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock
options.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During 2009, the FASB launched the FASB ASC as the single source of authoritative nongovernmental GAAP.
The ASC was effective for interim and annual periods ending September 15, 2009. The ASC does not change GAAP.
Instead, it takes all individual pronouncements that currently comprise GAAP and reorganizes them into approximately
90 accounting Topics, and displays all Topics using a consistent structure. Changes to the ASC subsequent to September
30, 2009, are referred to as Accountmg Standards Updates (”ASUs”) :

On June 30, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-01, “Topic 105 - Gener.ally Accepted Accounting Principles,
amendments based on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 168 -~ The FASB Accounting Standard
Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” -This ASU.amends the FASB ASC for the
issuance of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS”) No. 168, “The FASB Accounting Standards
Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” This ASU includes FASB SFAS No. 168 in
its entirety. ASU 2009-01 was effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The adoption of
ASU 2009-01 had no effect on our operating results or financial condition. ‘

The FASB issued ASC 810, ”Non—Conixollmg Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of
ARB No. 51). ASC 810 established accounting and reporting standards for the non~controllmg interest in a subsidiary
(previously referred to as minority interests). ASC 810 also .requires that a retained. non-controlling interest upon the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary be initially measured at its fair value. Upon adoption of ASC 810, we were required to
report any non—controllmg interests as a separate component of consolidated stockholders’ equity. We were also required
to present any net income or loss allocable to non-controlling interests and net income or loss attributable to our
stockholders separately in its consolidated statements of operations, if significant. ASC 810.is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after January 1, 2009. ASC 810 requires retroactive adoption of
the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests. All other requirements of ASC 810 are
applied prospectively. We adopted ASC 810 and reclassified the non-controlling interest in our Heliport subsidiary as a
separate component of consolidated stockholders’ equity on January 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC 810 did not have a
material impact on our results of operation or financial condition. . '

ITEM7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Saker Aviation Services, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Saker Aviation Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the
years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control ‘over financial reportlng as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s inteinal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit-also includes-examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant-estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above preséﬁt fairly, in all material reépects, the consolidated financial
position of Saker Aviation Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Kronick Kalada Berdy & Co.

Kingston, PA
March 28, 2011

16



SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
" ASSETS
December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Cash LT e e s 1,541,992 $ 574847
Accounts reqelvable e , _ ‘ 1,360,203 809,870
Inventories : o o . : . . 207,947 277,941
Note receivable — cutrent portion, less d1scount o ) B e ) 94,263 110,289
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  © A e 352473 - 166156
Deferred income taxes ) » 294,000 S —
Total current assets [ S e 3,850,878 . 1,939,103
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net ™~~~ , T
of accumulated depreciation and- amortization of $668 260 and $518 751 respegtwely e 1,918,104 - .- - 1,088,386
Deposits. - : L s e e L i 444472". G 541,961
Note receivable, less current portlon and dlscount ) ) » . 401,789 . . 509 431
Intangible assets — trade names .- . Lo ce oo 100,000 ° .. - 100,000
Goodwill ) » o o S 2,368,284 2368 284
Deferred income taxes S o : C el 362,000 i i

Total other assets 3,676,545 3,519,676

TOTAL ASSETS | | CUS_ omss1 5 6541165
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable o L R o s 8o 438148 431,899

Customer deposits . L ‘ 240,415 167,338

Line of credit _ D T P e -~ 500,000 - - 1,000,000

Acerued expenses L » 106475 741485

Notes payable — current portion =~ = ST ’ S ' 248,000 170,922

Total current liabilities 2,838,704 . 2,511,644

LONGTERMLIABILITIES - = . = : S

Notes payable - less current portion 1,106,475 - 949,817

Total liabilities .~ R S P ST 3,945,179 3,461,461

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Controlling interest

Preferred stock - $.001 par value; authorized 9,999, 154 ‘ L A A o :
none issued and outstanding o e s ; T =

Common stock - $.001 par value; authorized 100 000 000 -

33,164,453 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31,2010 and 2009; . » . 33,164 33,164
Additional paid-in capital e N - ) 19,651,434 19,632,661
Accumulated deficit » B » o ‘ (16,070,005) -(17,542,930)
Total controlling interest s S o : . T 3,614,593 0 02,122,895
Non-controlling interest S S ‘ ) N - 1,885,755 962,809
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY e e ool e o0 5500348 - 3,085,704
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQU'ITY $ 9,445,527 $ 6,547,165

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

COST OF REVENUE ,
~GROSS PROFIT = .-

SELLING, GENERAT AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
- OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), net -
INTEREST INCOME
'INTEREST EXPENSE "

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

. '.NET INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS: '

: -NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

- GAIN FROM DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY -

NET LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

_ INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFIT

Income tax benefit:
" Current
) Deferred
Total income tax benefit--*

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Basic Net income (loss) per Common Share
Continuing operations
~ Discontinued operations
Total Basic Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Dlluted Net income (loss) per Common Share
. Continuing operatioris’

 Discontinued operations _

Total Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares — Basic

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares — Diluted

. See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
12,080,159 < § 8,707,392
5,639,239 : 4,878.413
6,440,920 3,828,979
5,344,562 4,217,193
1,096,358 (388,214)
(147,104) 176,596
40,632 14,292
(172,961) (135,510)
(279,433) 55,378
816,925 (332,836)
. (547,468)
— 469,262
— (78,206)
816,925 (411,042)
656,000 —
656,000 —
1,472,925  $ (411,042)
004 § (0.01)
— (0.00)
004 § (0.01)
004 $ 0.01)
— (0.00)
004 $ . _(0.01)
33,164,453 34,314,400
33,596,453 34,314,400




SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-in "Accumulated  Non-controlling Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Interest - Equity

BALANCE - Jamuary 1,2009 37182987 . $ 37,183 S 19599504 § (17, 647

3,254

Amortization of stock based compensation o — — 268435 = .. ...268435

Return of stock via divestiture (3418,534) - (3419) - (235278) . e T

Return of stock via settlement ~ (600,000) (600) = -

Incfeass'in non-controlling inferest . — — P = 2129610 - 212961

Netloss _ o — — — (411,042) ; — . (@1,00)

962809

BALANCE — December 31,2009 - . = 33164453 33164 19632661 . (17,542,93(

Amortization of stock based compensation — — 18,773 —

Incréa:ég‘i‘m:lbn-control_ling interest - ' o — _ — L R e 992,946

Net income — — — 1,472,925 = 1,472,925

BALANCE - December 31,2010~~~ 33164453 $ 33,064 § 19651434 §:(16,070,005) . ' $: 1885755 . $ 5,500,348

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended .
December 31, .
2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES o B N L .
Netincome (l0ss). i .t ' ¥ , s 1,472,925 $ -(411,042)
Adjustments to reconclle net mcome (loss) to net cash prov1dedb (used ) peratmg actmues N o
‘Depreciation and amortizati RN G e 189002 147,506
~__Management fee recorded through addmonal paldmcapltal B e 922,946 =
,,«,/Gamon sale ofpropcrty and eqmpment : M : ST # Y oy A ,:: N S ' _.“ L i (18,229) :
Gain from disposal of subsidiary _ ) o o _ » § — (469,262)
. Stock based compensation S S P S < R 268,435 :

. Changes in operating assets and 11ab111t1es
© " Accounts receivable - .

esa T sy
)

- Inventories . .. 69994

- "Prepaid expenses and other current assets ST T e a6ty T (67,610)°
Deposits ) ) o ' - 9748 (110 881)
Deferred income taxes T (656,000). . . .. ‘

counts payable 11,915 (487‘772)7

Customerdeposits ~ oo T B T 3 154,270

. Accrued expenses e BT R R 664990_ : 482,051

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS L L B 656,636 . (177,195)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES : 2,128,561 (588,237)
CASH FLOWS FR STING ACTIVITIES

perty and équipment S

Issuance of note receivable - » B B — ] (711,032)
_Payment of note receivable e o I Lo 123,668 T
_ Net cash of sold subsidiary T (229,188)
. Purchase of property and equipment S Celncla Tl S i e (018,820 e - - (472,347).

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES . (895,152) : (1,377,405)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES )

_‘Repayment of notes payable S | B € 12X (106,911)

Increasemnon—controlhng mtereSth“bSIdmy e e e e s o e e e+ e — ... 212,961

- Proceeds from notes payable : i S e T T 02,584 T Y 961,904

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES o (266,264) 1 ,067,954
NET CHANGE IN CASH - 967,145 (897,688)
CASH -Beginning o e L 574,847 1472,535
CASH — Ending $ 1,541,992 § 574,847

Redemption of common stock of the Company in exchange for common stock of Airborne, Inc R IR — $ 238,697

Line of credit restructuring resulting in notes payable increase 3 500,000 $ —

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the.periods for: ; ‘ ‘ , B L . . S . )
Interest $ 172,961 $ 135,510

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Nature of Operations

Saker Aviation Services, Inc. (“Saker”), through its subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”), operates in the fixed base operation
(“FBO”) segment of the general aviation industry, in which it serves as the operator of a heliport and provides consulting services for-'
a non-owned FBO facility. FBOs provide ground-based services such as fueling and hangaring for general aviation, commercial, and
military aircraft; aircraft maintenance, and other miscellaneous services. o - ‘

FBO Air Wilkes-Barre, Inc. d/b/a Saker Aviation Services (“FBOWB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, provides FBO services in Avoca,
Pennsylvania. FBO Air Garden City, Inc. d/b/a Saker Aviation Services (“FBOGC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary provides FBO
services in Garden City, Kansas. FirstFlight Heliports, LLC d/b/a Saker Aviation Services (“FFH”), a majority-owned subsidiary,
operates the Downtown Manhattan Heliport via a concession agreement executed by the Company with the City of New York.

NOTE 2 — Management’s Liquidity Plans

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had cash of $1,541,992 and had a working capital surplus of $1,012,174. The Company
generated revenue of approximately $12,080,000 and net income of approximately $1,473,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The Company has a revolving line of credit agreement (the “Credit Facility””) dated March 3, 2009 and made jointly and severally by
the Company and Airborne, Inc., a former subsidiary that was divested in March of 2009 (“Airborne™), in favor of Birch Hill Capital,
LLC (“Birch Hill”). The Credit Facility requires interest payments based on outstanding balances at an interest rate of prime-plus-350
basis points (6.75% as of December 31, 2010) and is payable upon demand by Birch Hill. Birch Hill retains a first lien against all of .
the Company’s assets and the assets of Airborne. The Company and Airborne are joint and several guarantors of borrowings under
the Credit Facility and the $500,000 (remaining balance of $397,756)-of the facility transferred to notes payable. In the event of a sale
of Airborne, Birch Hill is entitled to receive the first.distribution of any related proceeds in the full amount of any outstanding against
the Credit Facility and remaining balance of the transfer to notes payable.

On May 7, 2010, the Birch Hill Credit Facility was modified such that the maximum line of credit was reduced to $500,000, which is
fully extended at December 31, 2010, and the remaining $500,000 was reclassified into a note with a 36-month amortization with a
24-month balloon payment of outstanding principal and interest at 7% per year.

The Company is also party to a Loan Agreement with EuroAmerican Investment Corp. (“EuroAmerican”), pursuant to which
EuroAmerican agreed to loan the Company an aggregate of up to $750,000. The EuroAmerican loan is evidenced by a Promissory
Note delivered by the Company to EuroAmerican. The unpaid principal amount under the Promissory Note accrues interest at the
annual rate of 12% and is payable in monthly interest only payments until maturity, at which time the entire principal balance and any
accrued but-unpaid interest is payable in full. On May 7, 2010, the maturity date of the EuroAmerican Promissory Note was extended
from February 27, 2011 to March 1, 2012, :

The Company is party to a concession agreement with the City of New York for the operation of the Downtown Manhattan Heliport
(the “Heliport”). Under this agreement, the Company must pay the greater of 18% of the first $5 million in program year gross '
receipts and 25% of gross receipts in excess of $5 million or minimum annual guaranteed payments that began at $1.2 million in Year
.1 of the agreement, which commenced on November 1, 2008, and increase to.approximately $1.7 million in Year 10 of the agreement,
which expires on October 31, 2018. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company incurred with the City of New York
$1,317,488 in concession fees, which exceeded the minimum annual guarantee payment, and is included in the cost of revenue. The
Company also agreed, pursuant to this agreement, to make certain capital improvements and safety code compliance upgrades to the
Heliport in the amount of $1,000,000 within two years following the receipt of building permits for the capital improvements and
another $1,000,000 by the end of the fifth year of the Agreement. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
the Company made approximately $928,000 and $260,000 in capital improvements at the Heliport pursuant to the concession
agreement. The Company believes that cash flow from the operation of the Heliport will be sufficient to satisfy the minimum annual -
guarantee and to fund the capital improvements as required under the agreement.

The Company believes that it has sufficient liquidity to sustain our existing business for at least the next twelve months.

NOTE 3 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policie;s

Principles of Consolidétion
The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Saker Aviation Services, Inc., its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
FBOWRB, and FBOGC, its majority-owned subsidiary, FFH, and Airborne through March 2, 2009. All significant inter-company
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SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The non-controlling interest represents one percent of FFH. The
amount of income attributed to this non-controlling interest in 2010 and 2009 was not significant.

Use of Estimates .

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and-
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The Company’s significant estimates include depreciation, impairment of goodwill and
intangibles, stock-based compensation, allowance for doubtful accounts, and deferred tax assets.

Cash :
The Company maintains its cash with various financial institutions. As part of its cash management process, the Company
periodically reviews the relative credit standing of these financial institutions.

Accounts Receivable and Revenue Concentration

The Company extends credit to companies for products and services. The Company has concentrations of credit risk in that 77.7% of
the balance of accounts receivable at December 31, 2010 is made up of only four customers. At December 31, 2010, accounts
receivable from the Company’s four largest accounts amounted to approximately $355,000 (26.1%), $300,000 (22.1%), $220,000
(16.1%), and $182,000 (13.4%), respectively. In addition, two customers represented $2,946,000 (32.7%) of revenue in 2010. The
Company hasin place a security deposit in connection with each of these four receivables but its receivables are otherwise not =
collateralized. Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. Accounts receivable are periodically evaluated
for colle’ctability and the allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted accordingly. Management determines collectability based on
their experience and knowledge of the customers. As of December 31 2010 and 2009, the Company has recorded an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $0. ‘

Inventories
Inventories consist primarily of mamtenance parts and av1at10n fuel and are stated at the lower of cost or market determined by the
first-in, first out method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided primarily using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives as set forth in footnote 5. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over the shorter of
its estimated useful life or lease term including renewal option periods expected to be exercised. Maintenance and repairs are charged
to expense as incurred; costs of major additions and betterments are capitalized. When property and equipment is sold or otherwise -
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected
in income. :

Goodwill and Intangible Assets :
Goodwill and intangibles that are deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortlzed but, mstead are to be reviewed at least annually

for impairment. Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment, including the identification of- reporting units,
assigning assets and liabilities to reporting units, assigning goodwill to reporting units, and determining the fair value. Significant
judgments required to estimate the fair value of reporting units include estimating future cash flows, determining appropriate discount
rates and other assumptions. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and/or
goodwill impairment for each reporting unit: The Company performed an analysis of 1ts goodwill and intangible assets at December
31, 2010 and 2009 and determined that no impairment charge was necessary.

Revenue Recognition _

Revenue for the sales of products is recognized at the time products are delivered to customers. Revenue for services is recognized at
the time the services are performed and provided to customers. The sources of revenue are recognized when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed and determinable and collectability is probable.

Other Income (Expense)

The gomponents of other income (expense) in 2010 was primarily attributable to non-income taxes and 2009 was primarily
attributable to the gain on the sale of New World Jet Corporation. In addition, the accretion of the discount on the note receivable is
recorded in interest income.

22



SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Reclassifications : ‘
-~ Certain reclassifications were made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation. None of the reclassifications
" affected our net income or loss in any period.

" Customer Deposits
"~ Customer deposits consist of amounts that customers are required to remit in advance to the Company in order to secure payment for
* future purchases and services.

: Advertlsmg
© The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was

approximately $12,800 and $9,300, respectively.

. Income Taxes
- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between their ﬁnanmal

| statement carrying amounts and their respective tax bases and for net operating loss carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
-~ are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income or loss in the years in which those temporary differences and
¢ carryforwards are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
" recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Although the Company has federal and state net operating losses available for income tax purposes that may be carried forward to
. offset future taxable income, the deferred tax assets are subject to a valuation allowance because it is more likely than not that certain
" of the deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods. The Company files income tax returns in the United States (federal)
. and in various state and local jurisdictions. In most instances, the Company is no longer subject to federal, state and local income tax
. examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2007. -

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The reported amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, approximate their fair value due to their short maturities. The carrying amounts of debt approximate fair value
because the debt agreements provide for interest rates that approximate market. The carrying value of the Note Receivable
approximates fair value because it was discounted at a current market rate (See Note 2 for additional information).

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per share applicable to common stockholders is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of
the Company’s common stock outstanding during the periods presented. Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution
* that could occur if securities or other instruments to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. Potentially
dilutive securities, consisting of options and warrants, are excluded from the calculation of the diluted income per share when their
exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock during the period.

" The following table sets forth the components used in the computation of basic and diluted income per share:

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2010(1) 2009(2)
v Weighten average‘common shares outstanding, basic ‘ 33,164,453 . 343 14,400
Common shares upon exercise of optlons o : | - - » 432,000 -
Commonsharesuponexerclse ofwarrants GRS Rl e aapE e e e
- Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted o : L 33,596,453 - 34,314,400

(1) Common shares of 8,350,000 underlying outstanding stock options and warrants for the year ended December 31, 2010 were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as their exercise pnces were greater than the average market price of the
. common stock during the period.
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(2) Common shares of 14,667,121 underlying outstanding stock options and warrants for the year ended December 31, 2009 were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share &s their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.-

Stock Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards are based on the estimated grant-date fair value: The Company
recognizes these compensation costs over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the option vesting term. For the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company incurred stock based compensation of $18,773 and $268,435, respectively.
Such amounts have been recorded as part of the Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2010, the unamortized fair value of the options totaled $17,250 and the
weighted average remaining amortization period of the options approximated 4.75 years. :

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the option. Because the
Company's employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and because changes in
the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing models donot .
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

The fair value of each share-based payment award granted during the years ended December 31, 2010 an'dv 2009 Were estimated using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average fair values:

For the Year Ended
‘ December 31,

. ‘ . 2010 ‘ . o 2009
Dividendyield -~ <. . 0%, e 0%
Expected volatility : 626% : : 491%
Risk-free interest rate ' 1.43% 2.09%
Expected lives N ‘ 5.0 years 50 years '

The weighted average fa1r value of the options on the date of grant using the fair value based methodology durmg the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, was $0.03 and $0.09, respectively.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

During 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) launched the FASB ASC as the smgle source of authoritative
nongovernmental GAAP. The ASC was effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The ASC does not
change GAAP. Instead, it takes all individual pronouncements that currently comprise GAAP and reorganizes them into '
approximately 90 accounting Topics, and displays all Topics using a consistent structure. Changes to the ASC subsequent to
September 30, 2009, are referred to as Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU”).

On June 30, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-01, “Topic 105 — Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, amendments based on
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 168 — The FASB Accounting Standard Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles.” This ASU amends the FASB ASC for the issuance of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 168, “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.” This ASU includes FASB SFAS No. 168 in its entirety. ASU 2009-01 was effective for interim and annual periods
ending after September 15, 2009. The adoption of ASU 2009-01 had no effect on the operating results or financial condition of the
Company

The FASB issued ASC 810, “Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No 51). ASC
810 established accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary (previously referred to as minority
interests). ASC 810 also requires that a retained non-controlling interest upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary be initially measured
at its fair value. Upon adoption of ASC 810, the Company was required to report any non-controlling interests as a separate
component of consolidated stockholders’ equity. The Company was also required to present any net income or loss allocable to non- -
controlling interests and net income or loss attributable to the stockholders of the Company separately in its consolidated statements of
operations, if significant. ASC 810 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
January 1, 2009. ASC 810 requires retroactive adoption. of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests.
All other requirements of ASC 810 are applied prospectively. The Company adopted ASC 810 and reclassified the non—controllmg
interest in FFH as a separate component of consolidated stockholders’ equity on January 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC 810 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s results of operation or financial condition.
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NOTE 4 — Inventories

-. Inventory consists primarily of maintenance parts and aviation fuel, which the Company dispenses to its customers. The Comipany

70 also maintains fuel inventories for commercial airlines, to which it charges into-plane fees when servicing commercial aircraft.

" Inventories consist of the following: -

. December 31,

2010
Parts inventory T 10561 8 s
. Fuel inventory 90,969
" Other inventory CLAB303 ey 099
"~ Total inventory 207 947 $ 277 941

e ': Property and equipment consist of the following:

Included in fuel inventory are amounts held for third parties of $40 183 and $84 685 as of December 31,2010 and 2009, respectlvely,
. with an offsetting liability included as part of accrued expenses.

NOTE 5 — Property and Equipment

December 31, Estimated
o ‘ 2010 2009 Useful Life
jpAdreraft o8 2784 s 254784 T-12years
. Vehicles o 232,061 251897 5-10years
- Office furniture and equipment o N © . 130801 109821 . 3-7years
Tools and shop equipment. . méosel 31942 3-l0yers
Leasehold improvements. - - LT 1439157 471,183 ¢ 10-20years
: Bu11dmg/ fuel farm e e 200,000 200,000 7~ 17years
- Total ~ : 2586365 0 1607037
Less: accumulated deprecmtlon and amortlzanon (668,260) (518,751)

- Property and equipment, net 81018104 § 1088386

Depreciation and amortization expense from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was
approximately $189,000 and $148,000, respectively.

NOTE 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

As of December 31 2010, mtanglble assets not subject to amortlzatlon consist excluswely of trade names related to the acquisition of
Tech Aviation Services, Inc. in Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania.
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NOTE 7 — Notes Payable and Line of Credit

Notes payable consist of:

December 31,
2010 _ y 2009
'EuroAmencan Promlssory Note — secured by the assets of the Company, B
"12% interest only, matures March2012 . . o $ ) 750,000 § ] 750,000
Birch Hill Capital Promissory Note — secured by the assets of the Company,
7%mterest maturesMay2012 B , ‘ ‘ 397,756 =
= AN el,Prormssory Note securedbyafuel farm-of FBOGC interest at prime plus ' : o T
1_\350 yasis points (6.75% atDecember 31, 2010), matures December 2015 o o 161,291 . .1.200,000
Sellers Tech, secured by assets of Tech and guaranteed by Saker, 5% interest,
matures March 2011 , ‘ . 23,494 ' 114,596
oter S e 56143
Subtotal - S . 1,354,475 1,120,739
Less: currentportion | B o (@as000) (170,922
Total — long term ) $ 1,106475 $ 949,817
Aggregate annual maturities of debt are as follows:
For the years ended December 31, Total
TR I R sl T $ oo ..248000
o202 : S 1025000
201300 T R A .- 40,000 .
2014 L ‘ . e ... . 40,000
L2005 o 1ATS
TOTAL $ 1,354,475

The Birch Hill and EuroAmerican Promissory Notes and Birch Hill line of credit are discussed in Note 2.

NOTE 8 — Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1,950,000 and
$2,371,000, respectively. In order to fully realize the related deferred tax assets, the Company will need to generate future taxable
income. Net operating loss carryforwards of $484,000, $506,000, $83,000, $705,000 and $172,000 expire in 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028
and 2029, respectively.
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" The Company’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities consisted of the following:

December 31,

: : '.:_:f.'__ Deferred tax assets: 2010 2009
~...: Operating loss carryforwards . . _ T 87600008 - 936,000
" Stock based compensation » 123,000 750,000

Deferred start up costs , Coo e 68,000 . ..: . . 64,000
Accrued expenses - 4 19,000 19,000

i Total deferred tax assets A , - - ‘ o N 970,000 - -.1,769:000
- Deferred tax liabilities: o B o }
. Goodwill ' e - (130000 (42,000)
:-.- Property and equipment _ - (186,000) (92,000)
* Total deferred tax liabilities _ — B o _ (199,000). - (134,000) -
' Deferred tax assets — net of deferred tax liabilities | - - 771,000 1,635,000
- Valuation Allowance .. o use0) (1635000
Deferred tax assets — net of valuation allowance : o $ 656,000 $ e
Change in valuation allowance P e TP $ . 1,520,000 - $. 1,839,000 -

" The provision for income taxes using the statutory federal tax rate as compared to the Company's effective tax rate is summarized as

follows:
December 31,
2010 2009
Tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate L GAD% . (40)%
State and local income taxes, net of federal . (0% GO%
Property and equipment R Lt LI M L 130% —%:
Operating loss carry forward L o 26.0% . =%
Non-deductible expenses . R [ . 100%.
Change in valuation allowance ‘ ‘ (80.3)% 29.0%
Effective income tax (benefit) rate . : e - 803)% - . 0%

.‘ : NOTE 9 - Stockholders’ Equity

i Stock Options v . _
* During December 2005, the Board of Directors approved the Stock Option Plan of 2005 (the “Plan”) and, during December 2006, the

stockholders of Saker approved the Plan at the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Plan is administered by the
Company’s compensation committee and provides for 7,500,000 shares of the common stock to be reserved for issuance under the
Plan. Directors, officers, employees, and consultants of the Company are eligible to participate in the Plan. The Plan provides for the
awards of incentive and non-statutory stock options. The committee determined the vesting schedule to be up to five years at the time
~ of grant of any options under the Plan, and unexercised options will expire in up to ten years. The exercise price is to be equal to at

" least 100% of the fair market value of a share of the Common Stock, as determined by the compensation committee, on the grant date.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 5,975,000 and 6,575,000 shares, respectively, available for grant as options under the
Plan.
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Details of all options outstanding are presented in the table below:

Number of Weighted Average

Options Exercise Price

Balance January 1, 2009 L e T3 ags 000§ 0507
Granted o - o o 375000 009

S Exercised. Lot il s T T
Forfeited (2,410,000) 0.35
Balance, January 1,2010 0" o oo oniioiano 0 1950,0000 v o 064
Granted - .. 600000 , 0.03
Exercised . ~ ~ — el
Forfeited (325,000) 138
Balance,December 31,2010.- . T 155000 $ 022

On December 1, 2010, the Company granted a stock option under the Plan to each of the four non-employee directors to purchase
25,000 shares of common stock at $0.04 per share, the closing price of the Company’s common stock on December 1, 2010. Each
option vests on December 1, 2011 and expires on December 1, 2015. These options are collectlvely valued at $4,000 and are being
amortized over the vesting perlod

On October 21, 2010, under the terms of an employment agreement, the Company granted an officer a stock option under the Plan to
purchase 500,000 shares of common stock at $0 03 per share, the closing price of the Company s common stock on October 20, 2010.
This option vests on October 20, 2015 and expires on October 20, 2020. This option is Valued at $15,000 and is being amortized over
the vesting period.

On December 1, 2010, optioné collectively representing 75,000 shares expired.
OnMarch 31, 2010, an option for 250,000 shares expired.

On December 1, 2009, the Company granted a stock option under the Plan to-each of the four non-employee directors to purchase
25,000 shares'of common stock at $0.12 per share, the closing price of the Company’s common stock on December 1, 2009. Each
option vested on December 1, 2010 and expires on December 1, 2014. These options were collectlvely valued at $12,000 and were
amortized over the vesting period.

On June 18, 2009, the Company granted a stock option under the Plan to an employee to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock at
$0.035 per share, the closing price of the Company’s common stock on June 17, 2009. The option vested on June 18, 2010 and
expires on June 18, 2014. This option was valued at $875 and was amortized over the vesting period.

On January 19, 2009, under the terms of an employment agreement, the Company granted an employee a stock option under the Plan
to purchase 250,000 shares of common stock at $0.08 per share, the closing price of the Company’s common stock on January 16,
2009. ‘This option vested on January 19, 2010 and expires on January 18, 2015. This option was valued at $20 000 and was amortlzed
over the two-year term of the employment agreement.

On March 1, 2009, a series of options for a former director expired. In total, 75,000 shares underlymg those options were forfeited as
of that date.

On March 2, 2009, a series of options for a former employee were forfeited in connection with the divestiture discussed in Note 2. In
total 500,000 shares underlying those options were forfeited as of that date.

On March 31, 2009, a series of options for a former employee expired. In total, 750,000 shares underlying those options were
forfeited as of that date.

On May 1, 2009, opt1ons for a series of employees. expired. In total, 160, 000 shares underlymg those options were forfeited as of that
date.
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On June 2, 2009, options for two former directors expired. In total, 150,000 shares underlying those options were forfeited as of that
date.

.: : .-.. On June 2, 2009, options for three former employees expired. In total 775,000 shares underlymg those options were forfelted as of
"¢ that date. .

A summary of the Company’s stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2010 is presented in the table below::

Weighted average remaining
contractual life of

Exercrse Price ~  Outstanding ptlons (in years) Exercisable
- $0. 030 R 500 000+ EARTIR PN X By n e
$0.035 25,000 25,000
$0.040 - : ‘100,,00'0 —
$0.080 : 100,000 100,000+
78004207 e 1004000 - 100,000
$0360 - 200,000 200 000‘
- $0.390 o 250,000 - 250,000
$0.500 250,000 _ 25 250,000
© TOTALS 1,525,000 7~~~ ook 7 950,000
Warrants : .
. Details of all warrants outstandmg are presented in the table below:
Number of . Weighted Average
‘Warrants Exercise Price
Balance, Januaryl 2009 - g e , o . o R T
Granted
Exerclse.d,(,
Forfeited ,
Balance, :yanuaryl 2010 0

Exerc1sed‘ R Tt L o P AR R T T
Forfeited (6 092 121) 0.60
Balance; Déc,emﬁétisla;';é"io e b i g 8 w7 325 0007 $ i

On March 31, 2010, warrants collectrvely representmg 4,892, 121 shares explred
On August 31, 2010, warrants collectively representing 1,200,000 shares explred

On Deceémber 29, 2009, the Company issued a-warrant to purchase up t0-2,900,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an
exercise price of 0.05 per share. The warrants were issued in connection with a financing event.

On March 2, 2009, a warrant for a former officer of the Company was forfeited in connection with the divestiture discussed in Note 2.
In total 600,000 shares underlying this warrant were forfeited as of that date.

On December 28, 2009, under the terms of a settlement agreement, a warrant to purchase up to 2,000,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock was forfeited.
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A summary of the Company’s warrants outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2010 is presented in the table below:

Weighted average remaining

g ( o contractual life of ntensic

. Exercise Price ~ Outstanding ~ warrants (in years) ~Exercisable _ B #19’
$005 2900000 400 ...2900000 - o -8 101,500
$1.00 4,425,000 0.67 4,425,000 $ —
CTOTALS . -~ 1325000 7325000 o $ 101,500

Restricted Stock '
On December 28, 2009, under the terms of a settlement agreement, 600, 000 shares of restricted stock were forfeited.

Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company has 9,999,154 shares of preferred stock authorized and none issued and
outstanding. The Company’s Board of Directors currently has the right, with respect to the authorized shares of our preferred stock, to
authorize the issuance of one or more series of preferred stock with such voting, dividend and other rights as the directors determine.

NOTE 10 — Employee Benefit Plan -

The Company maintains a 401K Plan (the “401K Plan”), which covers all employees of the Company. The 401K Plan contains an
option for the Company to match each participant's contribution. Any Company contribution vests over a five-year period on a twenty
percent per year basis. In June 2009, the Company suspended its match of participant contributions to the 401K Plan. In July 2010,
the Company reinstated its match of participant contributions at a rate of 25% of the first 3% of participant deferrals. Company
contributions to the 401K Plan totaled approximately $5,000 and $16,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

NOTE 11 — Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases under Continuing Operations
The Company leases a facility under the terms of a Fixed Base Operator’s Lease and Operating Agreement with the Wilkes-

Barre/Scranton International Airport. The agreement has a term of ten years, expiring August 21, 2013, with two five-year renewal
periods. The agreement requires payment of monthly rents of $6,250 plus additional payments based on certain of the Company’s
revenues. These include per-gallon fees for certain fuel sales and commissions on landing, parking, tie-down and other types of fees
charged by the Company to its aviation customers. '

The Company leases facilities from the City of Garden City, Kansas, which provides for: (a) a 21-year lease term expiring December
31, 2030, with one five-year renewal period; (b) a base rent of $1,035 and $2,187 per month for the first three years and years four
through 21 of the lease, respectively. In addition a fuel flowage fee of $.05 and $0.06 per gallon of fuel received by the Company in
year one and years two through twenty one, respectively, will be due monthly. The fuel flowage fee is to be reviewed annually by the
Garden City Regional Airport, the City of Garden City, and the Company.

Fixed rent expense from continuing operations aggregated approximately $87,420 and $93,600 for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. Flowage fees on fuel gallons purchased aggregated approximately $69,000 and $72,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Future minimum rental payments under the Company’s operating leases are as follows:

For the year ended

December 31, o Total
2010 s 87,420
2012 o , - : 87,420
2013 T ‘ T S , v 76,244
2014, T S ‘ 26,244
Thereaﬂer R . 393,660
$ 697,232

Emplovment Agreements

On October 21, 2010, the Company entered into a new employment agreement with its principal executive officer, which is described
in greater detail in Part ITI, Item 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. '

As of December 31, 2010, future severance commitments under the Company’s employment agreements aggregate approximately
$200,000.

NOTE 12 — Related Parties -

The firm of Wachtel & Masyr, LLP provides certain legal services to the Company. William B. Wachtel, a member of the Company’s
Board of Directors, is a managing partner of the firm. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company incurred
fees of approximately $85,500 and $195,000, respectively, for these legal services. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company
recorded in accounts payable an obligation for legal fees to such firm of approxunately $4,000 and $14,250, respectively, related to
legal services provided by such firm. In addition, Mr. Wachtel is a managing member of Birch Hill Cap1ta1 LLC and EuroAmerican
Investment Corp.

Effective November 2008, the Company executed a management agreement with-a company who has a non-controlling interest in a
subsidiary of the Company. The owners of this company include the children of a member of the Company’s Board of Directors. The
agreement requires a management fee of 10% of gross receipts of the subsidiary and a “success fee” of 50% of pre-tax profits; as such
term is defined in the management agreement. The non-controlling interest is one percent of the subsidiary of the Company and there
is no existing arrangement as to additional interests to be purchased in the future. Total fees in 2010 and 2009 aggregated
approximately $2,008,000 and $1,553,000, respectively, of which $1,115,000 and $532,000 is included in accrued expenses at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. As part of the fee arrangement, certain capital expenditures for the subsidiary are to be
funded by the non-controlling interest, per the operating agreement between the parties. The Company funded certain capital
improvements aggregating $922,946 in 2010 on behalf of the non-controlling interest. Pursuant to the Agreement, the $922,946
funded by the Company was deducted from amounts due to the non-controlling interest and recorded as additional paid in capital.

NOTE 13 - Litigation

From time to t1me the Company may be a party to one or more claims or disputes which may result in litigation. The Company's
management does not, however, presently expect that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 14 — Subsequent Events

On January 11, 2011, the Company acquired 124,031 of its common shares at $0.09 per share in connection with the transition of the
Company’s 401K Plan to a new provider. Such shares were contributed to the Company’s capital. The Company has evaluated
subsequent events which have occurred after December 31, 2010.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Conttols and Procedures

Management, including our President, Chief Executive Officer and principal financial officer (the same executive
is both our principal executive officer and principal financial officer), has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Based upon, and as of the date of that evaluation, our President, Chief Executive Officer and principal
financial officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective, in all material respects, to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed and submitted by us under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required and"
(ii) is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our President, Chief Execunve Officer and principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change to our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K that has materially affected, or that is reasonably likely to materially
affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Management"s‘ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake.
Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or
by management override. The design of any system of controls is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving our stated goals
under all potential future conditions. Moreover, over time controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or' procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent
limitations in the design of an internal control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to
design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we hired an experienced controller with appropriate US GAAP
expertise for certain complex transactions. This addlhon ehnunates the need to engage external, consulting resources to
accommodate complex transactions, should they occur.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal executive
officer/ principal financial officer, we conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on the assessment under this framework, management concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2010.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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Part 111
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE |

The following table contains certain mformahon related to the du‘ectors and execuuve officers of Saker as of
March 29, 2011: ~

Name - = : Age .~ Position

Ronald J. Ricciardi o P - 49 ‘-’Dlrector, Chairman of the Board Pre51dent&
Lo o ~ Chief Executive Officer ' S

Donald Hecht | Diecor

AWinS. Trenk = o an ” 81 R Dxrector o

Each of our directors is re-elected at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to serve until the next Annual Meeting
of Stockholders or until his successor is duly elected and shall have qualified. Our officers are elected annually by the
Board of Directors to serve at the discretion of the Board.

Business History
Ronald J. Ricciardi - Director, Chairman of the Board, President & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ricciardi had served as the President and a director of Arizona FBO Air, Inc. since its inception and was
designated as its Chief Executive Officer on January 2, 2004. He was appointed our President and a director of our
company and designated as our Chief Executive Officer effective with the reverse merger transaction on August 20, 2004.
On December 12, 2006, he was elected as our Vice Chairman of the Board. On March 2, 2009, he was re-appointed as our
President and designated as our Chief Executive Officer. On April 8, 2009, Mr. Ricciardi was elected as our Chairman of
the Board. -

Mr. Ricciardi is a senior executive with extensive general management experience in entrepreneurial and large
companies. Before joining the Arizona FBO Air, Mr. Ricciardi was President and CEO of P&A Capital Partners, Inc., an
entertainment finance company established to fund the distribution of independent films. Mr. Ricciardi was also co-
founder, Chairman and CEO of eTurn, Inc., a high technology service provider, for which he developed a consolidation
strategy, negotiated potential merger/acquisition candidates, prepared private placement materials and executed
numerous private, institutional and venture capital presentations. After a management career at Pepsi-Cola Company
and the Perrier Group of America, Mr. Ricciardi was President and CEO of Clearidge, Inc., a leading regional consumer
products company, where he provided strategic and organizational development, and led a consolidation effort that
included 14 transactions, which more than tripled their revenue over four years.

William B. Wachtel - Director

Mr. Wachtel was elected as a director and our Chairman of the Board on March 31, 2005. Mr. Wachtel served as
our Chairman until April 8, 2009, when he resigned from such capacity but remained a member of the Board.
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Mr. Wachtel has been a managing partner of Wachtel & Masyr, LLP, or its predecessor law firm (Gold & Wachtel,
LLP), since its founding in August 1984. Such firm provides certain legal services to the Company. He is a co-founder of
the Drum Major Institute, an organization carrying forth the legacy of the late Reverend Martin Luther King, Jr.

Donald Hecht - Director
Mr. Hecht was first elected as a director effective September 15, 2006, and has served in that E:apacity since then.

Mr. Hecht has, since 1966, been a managing partner of Hecht and Company, P.C., a certified public accountmg
firm. He has served on the board of directors of other public companies. '

Jeffrey B. Mendell - Director
Mr. Mendell was first elected as a director on September 30, 2004, and has served in that capacity since then.

Mr. Mendell is, and has been since 1983, the Chairman & CEO of JBM Realty, a private real estate company
headquartered in Greenwich, Connecticut. This company is active in the development, financing and sale of residential
and commercial properties. His most recent project was the development of Greenwich Shore, a luxury rental apartment
project overlooking Long Island Sound in Greenwich, Connecticut.

Earlier in his career, Mr. Mendell was an executive with Citicorp Real Estate, Inc. in New York City and he is a
licensed real estate broker in the State of New York

Alvin S. Trenk - Director

Mr. Trenk was first elected as a director and our Chairman of the Board effective with the reverse merger
transaction on August 20, 2004. He resigned as the Chairman of the Board on March 31, 2005, but has served as a director
since August 20, 2004.

Mr. Trenk has served as Chairman and CEO of Air Pegaéus since 1981 and, from 1997 to 2003, as Chairman,
President and CEO of Sightseeing Tours of America, Inc. and Liberty Helicopters, Inc., privately held corporations
operating public use heliports in New York and providing helicopter air tours and charter and air services. From 1976 to
1980, Mr. Trenk was Vice Chairman of Kenton Corporation, a diversified publicly-traded corporation, where he also
served as President and CEO of Charles Town Turf Club, owner and operator of thoroughbred race tracks in West
Virginia, and Chairman and CEO of International Health Company, which owned and operated a national chain of
artificial kidney centers. '

Family Relationships
There are no family relationships among our directors.
Other Directorships

None of our directors serves as a director of a company with a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12
of the Exchange Act or any company registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Code of Ethics

On May 19, 2006, our Board of Directors adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions as well as all
of our other employees and directors. We will provide to any person, without charge, upon request, a copy of our Code
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of Ethics upon written or oral request to Ronald J. Ricciardi, Chairman of the Board, Saker Aviation Services, Inc., 101
Hangar Road, Wilkes-Barre/Scranton International Airport, Avoca, PA 18641, or by telephone at: (570) 457-3400.

Committees of the Board of Directors

. There are three committees of the Board of Directors: the Audit Committee comprised of Donald Hecht and
Ronald J. Ricciardi; the Compensation Committee comprised of Jeffrey B. Mendell, Chairman, and Alvin S. Trenk, and the
Nominating Committee comprised of Jeffrey B. Mendell and Ronald J. Ricciardi.

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based solely on a review of Forms 3 and 4 and amendments thereto, furnished to us during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010 and Forms 5 and amendments thereto, furnished to us with respect to the fiscal year ended December
31, 2010, each director and officer timely reported all of his transactions during that most recent fiscal year as required by
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, except for one late Form 4 for each of our directors reporting an option grant.

Corporate Governance

There have been no changes to the procedures by which‘bur security holders may recommend nominees to its
Board of Directors since the Board set forth such policy in its proxy statement for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders held
on July 15, 2010.

Our Board of Directors has determined that Donald Hecht qualifies as an audit committee financial expert on its

Audit Committee, as such term is defined in applicable Commission rules, and is “independent” as that term is defined
by the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. (“Nasdaq”).

ITEM11. - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth the annual and long-term compensation paid by us for services performed on our
behalf with respect to the person who served as our Chief Executive Officer during the fiscal years ended December 31,
2010 or 2009. The person named in the table is the only person who served as our principal executive officer or principal
financial officer in fiscal 2010. We have no other executive officers.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Option All Other
. ) ' : : Salary - Bonus : Awards Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year $Q 6] $ @ %)) )
Ronald J. Ricciardi, Chairman of the SR I F e : _
Board U T ioag107 179,982 0 < 780,377 v 150000 - o 13,899 - 239,207
President& CEQ.-". =& - .. .0 . 53009 « . 172,083 ¢ i o= o et .. 20300 -~ 7 o0 192,383

1. Mr. Ricciardi received a base salary of $175,000 through October 20, 2010, and $200,000 thereafter.'

2. Mr. Ricciardi received on October 21, 2010 an option for 500,000 shares at $0.03 per share, the closing price of the
common stock on October 20, 2010, which option shall vest on October 21, 2015 and be exercisable for the succeeding
-five years. ' : ' g

3. Mr. Ricciardi receives health insurance. coverage estimated at a value of $1,100 per month. Mr. Ricciardi received a
match to his 401K contributions from us.amounting to approximately $700 in 2010 and approximately $3,300 in 2009.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised Option
Options C Exercise Option
Exercisable Price Expiration
Name #(1) , $) Date
. 250,000 1.60 o 03/31/2000
Ronald J. Ricciardi C250,000 o oo 080, oo 0 08/31/2011
' © 250,000 - - 039 : T 03/31/2
500,000 0.03
1. As part of his revised employment agreement, Mr. Ricciardi received on October 21, 2010 an option for 500,000

shares at $0.03 per share, the closing price of the common stock on October 20, 2010, which option shall vest on
October 21, 2015 and be exercisable for the succeeding five years. As part of his previous employment agreement,
Mr. Ricciardi: (a) received on April 1, 2006 an option for 250,000 shares at $0.50 per share, the closing sales price on
March 31, 2006, which is currently exercisable; and (b) received as of April 1, 2007 an option for 250,000 shares at
$0.39 per share, the closing sales price on March 31, 2007, which is currently exercisable. Mr. Ricciardi also received
on April 1, 2005 an option for 250,000 shares at $1.60 per share, which option expired on March 31, 2010.

2010 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

Fees
Earned in Option
Cash Awards Total
Name &M ®Q - ®)
Donald Hecht ’ o = . 1,000 o 100
Jeffrey B. Mendell - o 1,000
AlvinS. Trenk - . SO ¥ IS S S
William B. Wachtel U e e 000 A R T
1. Non-employee Directors are each entitled to a fee of $1,000 per board meeting and $750 and $500 per committee
meeting for committee chairman and committee members, respectively. Each director is also entitled to
reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors. During
2010, in consideration of our financial situation, each non-employee director waived his cash fees and expenses.
2. Each non-employee director is eligible to be granted an annual option to purchase shares of our common stock. On

December 1, 2010, the compensation committee granted each non-employee director an option for their service in
2010. Each option was for 25,000 shares and was priced at $0.04 per share, which was the closing sales price of our
common stock on December 1, 2010. The options vest on December 1, 2011 and may be exercised until December 1,
2015.

Employment Agreements

On October 21, 2010, the Board of Directors authorized the execution of a new employment agreement with Mr.

Ricciardi. This agreement calls for Mr. Ricciardi to serve as our President, Chief Executive Officer, and as Chairman of the
Board of Directors and is for a term of three years. We have the option to extend such agreement for an additional two
year period. The employment agreement calls for an initial base annual salary of $200,000 with subsequent annual
increases at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Incentive bonus payments may-be made annually in the amount of
3% of pre-tax income provided that we meet or exceed our annual operating plan for earnings before interest, taxes,
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depreciation and amortization. Additionally, Mr. Ricciardi was granted an option to acquire 500,000 shares of our
common stock. This option vests on October 21, 2015 and is exercisable for a subsequent term of five years ending on
October 21, 2020. Should we not exercise our option to extend Mr. Ricciardi’s employment agreement for the additional
two year period, Mr. Ricciardi shall forfeit 200,000 shares of his stock option, with the remaining 300,000 shares vesting on
October 21, 2013 and being exercisable until October 21, 2018.

Additional Narrative Disclosure

We do not offer a defined retirement or pension plan. Our 401k Plan (the “401K Plan”) covers all of our
employees. The 401K Plan contains an option for us to match each participant's contribution. Any contributions by us vest
over a five-year period on a 20% per year basis. In June 2009, we suspended our match of participant contributions. In
July 2010, we reinstated our match of participant contributions at a rate of 25% of the first 3% of participant deferrals. Our
contributions to the 401K Plan totaled approximately $5,000 and $16,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. ' ' o

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
: RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS = : . :

Beneficial Owners

The following table presents certain information as of March 29, 2011 regarding the beneficial ownership of our
Common Stock by: o . : .

o each of our current executive officers and directors; and
.o . . all of our current directors and executive officers as a group; and
° each other person or entity known by us to own beneficially 5% or more of our issued and

outstanding common stock.

Number of Shares Percentage of
of Common Stock Common Stock
‘ . . v Beneficially Beneficially
Name of Beneficial Owner _ ‘ . Owned Owned (1)
Ronald J.Ricciardi (2) ==/ ow o leasms@) 49 %
William B-Wachtel (9 = o o) 177 %
AinsTrenk(® i 44 %
Donald Hecht (4) | _' o 366,700 (6) 1.1 %
Jeffrey B. Mendell (4) | 310293 (7) 09 %
All directors and officers o 9815419 29.6 %

As a group (5 in number)
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1)

6)

The percentages computed in the table are based upon 33,164,453 shares of our common stock, which were
outstanding on March 29, 2011. Effect is given, pursuant to Rule 13-d(1)(i) under the Exchange Act, to shares of
our common stock issuable upon the exercise of options or warrants currently exerc1sab1e or exercisable within 60
days of March 29, 2011. : ! :

Ronald J. Ricciardi is our President and Chief Executive Officer and he also serves as Chairman of the Board and
as a director. Mr. Ricciardi’s address is 101 Hangar Road, Avoca, Pennsylvania 18641. ‘

The shares of the Common Stock reported in the table include: (a) 250, 000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an

-option expiring March 31, 2011, which is currently exercisable; (b) 250,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an

option expiring March 31, 2012, which is currently exercisable; and (c) 100,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of
a warrant expiring August 31, 2011, which is currently exercisable. The shares of our common stock reported in
the table do not reflect 500,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an option granted on October 21, 2010, which
shall become exercisable on October 21, 2015.

The reporting person is a director. The address of each director is 101 Hangar Road, Avoca, Pennsylvania 18641,

The shares of our common stock reported in the table include: (a) 750,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of a
warrant expiring August 31, 2011, which is currently exercisable; (b) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of
an option expiring April 18, 2012, which is currently exercisable; (c) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an
option expiring December 1, 2012, which is currently exercisable; and (d) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise
of an option expiring December 1, 2013, which is currently exercisable; (e) 25,000 shares issuable upon the
exercise of an option expiring December 1, 2014, which option is currently exercisable. The shares of our common
stock reported in the table do not reflect (x) 333,400 shares of our common stock and (y) 200,000 shares issuable
upon the exercise of a warrant expiring August 31, 2011 (which is currently exercisable) acquired by Wachtel &
Masyr, LLP, which provides certain legal services for us, in the private placement which we closed on September
1, 2006. Mr. Wachtel is a managing partner of such firm, but does not have sole dlsposmve or voting power with

" respect to such firm’s securities.

The shares of our common stock reported in the table include: (a) 500,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of a
warrant expiring August 31, 2011, which is currently exercisable; (b) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an
option expiring April 18, 2012, which is currently exercisable; (c) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an
option expiring December 1, 2012, which is currently exercisable; (e) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an
option expiring December 1, 2013, which is currently exercisable; and (f) 25,000 shares 1ssuable upon the exercise
of an option expiring December 1, 2014, which is currently - exercisable.

The shares of our common stock reported in the table include: (a) 100,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of'a
warrant expiring August 31, 2011 which is currently exercisable; (b) 25,000 shares issuable upon the-exercise of an
option expiring April 18, 2012, which is currently exercisable; (c) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an
option expiring December 1, 2012, which is currently exercisable; (d) 25,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of an
option expiring December 1, 2013, which is currently exercisable; and (e) 25,000 shares 1ssuab1e upon the exercise
of an option expiring December 1, 2014, which is currently exercisable. :
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table set forth certain information, as of December 31, 2010, with respect to securities authorized
for issuance under equity compensation plans. The only security being so offered is our common stock.

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of Securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise . ©  exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, - outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights ~  warrants and rights column (a))
R -

Equity compensation plans. .

approved by security holders .. | 155000 $. o029 5975000

Equity compensationplans not: . N SR ST W T R S

approved by security holders : : — R i T TR
Total 1,525,000 $ 0.219 5,975,000

We received stockholder approval on Decémber 12, 2006 for the Saker Aviation Services, Inc. Stock Option Plan of
2005 which relates to 7,500,000 shares of our common stock.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED ‘TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The law firm of Wachtel & Masyr, LLP provides certain legal services to us. William B. Wachtel, a member of our
Board of Directors, is a managing partner of this firm. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we were billed by such
firm for legal services in the amount of $85,500. At December 31, 2010, we had recorded in accounts payable an obligation
for legal fees of approximately $4,000 related to these legal services.

Our Board of Directors adopted a Policy and Procedure Governing Related Party Transactions on April 26, 2007,
which policy delegates certain functions related to the review and approval of related party transactions to the audit
committee and the compensation committee.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors made the determination of director independence in accordance with the definition set
forth in the Nasdaq rules. Under such definition, each of Donald Hecht, Jeffrey B. Mendell, and Alvin S. Trenk qualify as
independent.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered were approximately $81,000 by Kronick
Kalada Berdy & Co. for 2010 and approximately $118,000 by Kronick Kalada Berdy & Co. and Marcum LLP for 2009 for
the audits of our annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the reviews of the
financial statements included in the Company’s Forms 10-Qs for those fiscal years.

Audit-Related Fees. The aggregate fees billed for professional services categorized as Audit-Related Fees
rendered were $0 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

39



Tax Fees. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the aggregate fees billed for services categorized as
Tax Fees were $26,500 and $20,000, respectively.

All Other Fees. The aggregate fees billed for services categorized as All, Other Fees rendered by the vprix'lcipal
accountant were $0 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Audit Committee Policies and Procedures. The audit committee must pre-approve all auditing services and
permitted non-audit services (including the fees and terms thereof) to be performed for us by our independent registered
public accountants, subject to the de minimus exceptions for non-audit services described in Section 10A(i)(1)(B) of the
Exchange Act, which nonetheless must be approved by the audit committee of the Board of Directors prior to the
completion of the audit. Each year the audit committee approves the engagement of our independent registered public
accountant to audit our financial statements, including the associated fee, before the filing of the previous year’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K. At the beginning of the fiscal year, the audit committee will evaluate other known potential
engagements of the independent registered public accountants, including the scope of work proposed to be performed
and the proposed fees, and approve or reject each service, taking into account whether the services are permissible under
applicable law and the possible impact of each non-audit service on the independent registered public accourntant’s
independence from management. At each such subsequent meeting, the registered public accountants and management
may present subsequent services for approval. Typically, these would be services such as due diligence for an acquisition,
that would not have been known at the beginning of the year.

Since December 17, 2009 when our Board of Directors initially authorized the engagement of Kronick Kalada
Berdy & Co., and since September 24, 2004 when our Board of Directors initially authorized the engagement of Marcum
LLP, pursuant to the Commission rules stating that an auditor is not independent of an audit client if the services it
provides to the client are not appropriately approved, each subsequent engagement of Marcum LLP and Kronick Kalada
Berdy & Co, has been approved in advance by the audit committee of the Board of Directors, and none of these
engagements made use of the de minimus exception to the pre-approval contained in Section 10A(i)(1)(B) of the Exchange
Act.
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Part VI

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of Saker Aviation Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2010 and 2009 and for each of the years then ended, and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm thereon, are included herein as shown in the “Table of Contents to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

None:-
(c) Exhibits

Exhibit No.  Description of Exhibit

3() @ Certificate of Designations. (1) -

3()(3)  Articles of Merger (ChangmgnametSakerAvm’aon Services, Inc. (3) (Exhibit 3.1)

3 (i) | Resta't.ed'Ai'ﬁcl‘es of Incofporaﬁbﬁ.j(?) o

3(ii) - Bylaws of Saker Aviéﬁoﬁ Serv1cesInc (3) ,' (Exh1b1t32) - |

41  Form of Common Stock Certlﬁcate(4) B

42 Copyof Wamantexirng August 3L 011 ()

43 °  Copy of Warrant exbiring Dece?nber 29,2014 \(4): .

10.1 Share Exchange Agréemerit between Séker 'Av"ria';i\ori ééﬁices, Inc., Airborne, Inc. and John and

Daphne Dow dated March 2,2009. (4)

10.2 ~ Loan Agreement between Saker Aviation Serv1ces, Inc. and Aiﬂﬁ&fné, Inc. dated March 2, 2009.

4)
10.3 Promissory Note between Airborne, Inc. and Saiéér Aviation Services, Inc. dated March 2, 2009.
4)
104 Loan Agreement between Saker Aviation SérviceS, Inc. and EuroAmerican Investment Corp.

dated March 2, 2009. (4)

105 ‘Promissory Note between Saker Aviation Services, Inc. and EuroAmerican Investment Corp.
dated March 2, 2009. (4)

10.6 Loan Agreement between Saker Aviation Sérvicés, Inc. and Five Star Bank dated March 2, 2009.

4) -
10.7 Security Agreement between Saker A\}iation Services, Inc. and Five Star Bank dated March 2,
2009. (4)
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10.8 Line of Credit Note between Saker Aviation Services, Inc., Airborne, Inc., and Five Star Bank
dated March 2, 2009. (4)

10.9 Assignment and Allonge between F1ve Star Bank and Berh Hﬂl Capltal dated December 29, 2009.

@ | | S
- *10.10 Employment Agreement dated as of October 21 2010 by and between Ronald J. Ricciardi and
Company (5)
311 Cert1f1cat10n pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d 14(a) under the Secur1t1es Exchange Act (prmcrpal

executive and financial officer).

321 Certification pursuant to Section 1350 Certification of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Management compensatory plan or arrangement

Footnotes:

(1) Incorporated by reference from Exh1b1t 3.16 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December
18, 2006.

(2) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 1, 2009. -
(3) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2005.

(4) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009.

(5) Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 26, 2010.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Saker Aviation Services, Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: March 29, 2011 By: /s/ Ronald |. Ricciardi

Ronald J. Ricciardi,
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE } TITLE ' DATE

» Chairman of the Board,
/s/ Ronald J. Ricciardi President, Chief Executive Officer =~ March 29, 2011
Ronald J. Ricciardi

/s/ Donald Hecht Director March 29, 2011
Donald Hecht

/s/ Jeffrey B. Mendell Director March 29, 2011
Jeffrey B. Mendell

/s/ Alvin S. Trenk Director March 29, 2011
Alvin S. Trenk

/s/ William B. Wachtel Director March 29, 2011

William B. Wachtel
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| UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For The Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2011

or
[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 000-52593

SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chartef)

Nevada : 87-0617649 -
(State or other jurisdiction of (IR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) . Identification No.)y
101 Hangar Road, Avoca, PA 18641

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(570) 457-3400
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

N/A
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports)
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or-a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule
12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer [0  Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes O No

As of August 14, 2011, the registrant had 33,040,422 shares of its common stock, $0.001 par value, issued and outstanding.
i
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SAKER AVIATION:SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
June 30, December 31,
2011 2010
(Unaudited)

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash . $ 995,492 $ 1,541,992
Accounts recelvable 1,645,425 1,360,203
Inventories - - ~ 256,713 7. " 207,947
Note rece1vable current portlon less d1scount _ ‘ e o 97,610 94,263
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . R B ; o 399,252 352,473
Deferred income taxes - ; ' -1294,000 294,000
Total current assets " 3,688,492 - 3,850:878
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net P N S

of accumulated depreciation of $769 710 and- 2,579,689 1,918,104
OQTHER ASSETS ~  © ol Y
Deposits S 446,590 -. . 444,472
Note receivable, less current o 352,132 401,789
Intangible assets - © 1350000 T 100,000
Goodwill - : - ‘ o ; 2,368,284 2,368,284-
Deferred income taxes ) e e L L . 186,000 362,000
Total other assets : o - » S 3,488,006 . 3,676,545
TOTAL ASSETS IR [ $ 9,756,187 9,445,527

LIABILITIES AND STOCKI-IOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable. - 8. ...616323 - 443,814
Customer deposits 243,954 240,415
Line of credit . ..500000 500,000
Accrued expenses 648,493 1,406,475
Notes payable — current portlon : - v 959,271~ 248,000
Total current liabilities o . .2,968,041 2,838,704
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable - less current portion 348,065 1,106,475
Total liabilities - 3,316,106 3,945,179
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Controlling interest
Preferred stock - $.001 par value; authorized 9,999,154; .

none issued and outstanding - — —
Common stock - $.001 par value; authorized 100 000, 000

33,040,422 and 33,164,453 shares issued and outstanding

as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 respectlvely ] . ] ) 33,040 33,164
Additional paid-in capital : e e 19,643,067 19,651,434
Accumulated deficit (15,830,163) (16,070,005)
Total controlling interest o ST 3,845,944 3,614,593
Non-controlling interest - » v 2,594,137 1,885,755
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY ..~ "7 7 _ 6,440,081 5,500,348
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY $ 9,756,187 $ 9,445,527

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

For the Six Months Ended

June 30,

2011 2010

2011

2010

REVENUE 4574759 83250546 8

7,349,977 §

3,873,194

5,531,525"

2,743,998

GROSSPROFIT ~ - .

1367449

1766039

3,476,783

2924731 .

2781527

2,419257.

OPERATING INCOME o 525812 398,590

552,052

368,270

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
~ OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), net -
INTEREST INCOME o
INTEREST EXPE] @

. (89,519) . .
330

- (76,828)
18,812

TUT8,194)

| (O1,734)
633
(88,248)

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) o (73 673) (134,693)

(136,210)

(179,349)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE © " - 452,139 ~ . 263,897

415,842

188,921

176,000

DEFERRED INCOMETAXEXPENSE 176,000 —

NET INCOME 263,897

239842

188,921

Net income per Common Share - Basic and Diluted $ oo 8 001 §

Welghted Average !
_Qutstanding — Basic.

ber of Common e
N 33,040,422 .. 733,164,453

001 §

33,047,960

0.01

- 33,164,453

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares

34,750,738

33,164,453

Outstanding — Diluted 34,743,200 33,164,453

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVI [

SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2010

Net income:

Adjustments to reconcﬂe net mcome to net cash rov1ded by k

" Depreciation and amortization -

Management fee recorded through addltlonal p in capltal

Loss on dispositions of equipment
Stock based compensation
_Changes in operating assets and 11ab11' i
Accounts. receivable '
. ‘Inventorles
Prepaid expenses and other currént asse
Deposits
Deferred income taxes
Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Accrued expenses
Security deposits.-. T
TOTAL ADJU STMENTS

2011

’

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposition of equipment - - .

Payment of note receivable
_ Purchase of property and equipment -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVIT[ES R

Purchase of common stock, retlred
Repayment of notes payable

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGEINCASH * .. .« ...

CASH - Beginning
CASH - Ending

Cash paid during the periods for:
Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON—CASH F LOW IN'FORMAT

Lme of cred:lt restructunng

- 166565 76,347
708382 474 832
L2799 —
3,498 7,784
(394,124
24,956
(145,129
(50 757),
246 192
S 60,618+
4_73,2_04
S 50,126
(83,575) 824,049
00332267 . . .1,012,970
65247 —
46310 ‘ 55,145
(931,196) 1 (790,458)
(819,639) (735,313)
(11989 =
(47,139) (58,611)
0 (59,128) = (58,611)
546,500) . . .. 219,046
1,541,992 574,847
995492 $ 793,803
78,194 $ 88248
— s 500,000

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudlted condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America for interim financial statements and with the instructions to Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and
disclosures required for annual financial statements. These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and related footnotes for Saker Aviation Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”),
which appear in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 and filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. - . :

The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2011 and the condensed consolidated statements of operations and cash
flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 have been prepared by the Company without audit. In the opinion of
the Cornpany ] management all adjustments (consisting of normal recurrmg accruals) necessary to make the Company’s financial
posmon as of June 30, 2011 and its results of operations for the three and six months and cash flows for the six months ended June 30,
2011 not misleading have been included. The results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 are not
necessanly indicative of the results to be expected for any full year or any other interim period.

NOTE 2 — Management’ s ngu1d1g Plans

As of June 30, 2011, the. Company had cash of $995,492 and had a working capital sutplus of $720,451. The Company generated
revenue of approximately $7,350,000 and net income of approximately $240,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2011.

On TJuly 20, 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Bank of America. The Loan Agreement
provides the Company with (i) a revolving line of credit agreement (the “B of A Credit Facﬂlty”) in the amount of $650 000, and (ii) a
$318,198 term loan facility (the “B of A Term Loan).

The B of A Credit Facility, which was fully extended at the filing of this report, requires interest payments based on outstanding
balances at an intérest rate.of 30-day LIBOR plus 300 basis points, and is annually renewable at Bank of America’s option. An annual
fee of 0.50% is incurred against the total availability of the B of A Credit Facility. The B of A Term Loan is amortized over 48
months at an interest rate of 4.2%. A one-time origination fee of 1.0% was incurred for the B of A Term Loan. x

The Company used $500,000 of the proceeds from the B of A Credit Facility to repay the revolving line of credit agreement (the
“Prior Credit Facility”) dated March 3, 2009 and made jointly and severally by the Company and Airborne, Inc., a former subsidiary
that was divested in March of 2009 (“Airborne™), in favor of Birch Hill Capital, LLC (“Birch Hill”). The Prior Credlt Facility
required interest payments based on outstanding balances at an interest rate of prime plus 350 basis points (6.75% as of June 30, 2011)
and was payable upon demand by Birch Hill.

The use of proceeds of the B of A Term Loan was the repayment of the remaining principal that resulted when, on May 7,2010, the
Prior Credit Facility was modified to reduce the maximum line of credit to $500,000 and to reclassify the remaining $500,000 into a
promissory note that provided for a 36-month amortization with a 24-month balloon payment of outstanding principal and interest at
7% per year

The Company used $150 000 of the proceeds from the B of A Credit Facility, along with $600,000 in cash on. hand, to repay a Loan
Agreement with EuroAmerican Investment Corp. (“EuroAmerican”), pursuant to which EuroAmerican loaned the Company an )
aggregate of $750,000.

As aresult of the Company’s repayment of the Prior Credit Facility and EuroAmerican loan; such arrangements have been terminated
and Airborne is no longer a co-borrower. The warrants issued to Birch Hill in connection with its financing event remain in place.

The Company is party to a concession agreement with the City of New York for the operation of the Downtown Manhattan Heliport
(the “Heliport™). Under this agreement, the Company must pay the greater of 18% of the first $5 million in program year gross
receipts and 25% of gross receipts in excess of $5 million or minimum annual guaranteed payments that began at $1.2 million in Year
1 of the agreement, which commenced on November 1, 2008, and increase to approximately $1.7 million in Year 10 of the agreement,
which expires on October 31, 2018. During the six months ended June 30, 2011, the Company incurred with the City of New York
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SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

approximately $726,000 in concession fees, which is included in the cost of revenue. The Company also agreed, pursuant to this
agreement, to make certain capital improvements and safety code compliance upgrades to the Heliport in the amount of $1,000,000
within two years following the receipt of building permits for the capital improvements and another $1,000,000 by the end of the fifth
'year of the Agreement. At June 30, 2011, the Company had made approximately $1,840,000 in capital improvements at the Heliport
pursuant to the concession agreement. The Company believes that cash flow from the operation of the Heliport will be sufficient to
satisfy the minimum annual guarantee and to fund the remaining capital improvements as required under the agreement.

NOTE 3 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation i

The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries, FBO Air
Wilkes-Barre, Inc. d/b/a Saker Aviation Services (“FBOWB?”), FBO Air Garden City, Inc. d/b/a Saker Aviation Services (“FBOGC™),
and its majority-owned subsidiary FirstFlight Heliports, LLC d/b/a Saker Aviation Services (“FFH”). All significant inter-company
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications _
Certain reclassifications were made to the prior period amounts to conform to the current period presentation. None of the
reclassifications affected our net income or loss in any period.

Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per share applicable to common stockholders is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of the
Company’s common stock outstanding during the periods presented. Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other instruments to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. Potentially
dilutive securities, consisting of options and warrants, are excluded from the calculation of the diluted income per share when their
exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock during the period. ’

The following table sets forth the components used in the computation of basic and diluted income per share:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

June 30, ‘ June 30,
2011+ 2010 _ 2011 2010
| ,g:i‘fhte‘,i average common shares outstanding, 33040422 33,164,453 33,047,960 33,164,453
Common shares upon exercise of options - 1,702,778 . » L 1,702,778 .
Weighted average common shares outstanding; 5 00 33,164,453 34,750,738 33,164,453

di

* Outstanding stock options and warrants aggregating 4,975,000 and 9,503,587, respectively, were excluded from the compilation of -
diluted earnings per share as their exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common stock for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. :

Stock Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards are based on the grant-date fair value. The Company
recognizes these compensation costs over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the option vesting term. For the
six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company incurred stock based compensation of $3,498 and $7,748, respectively. Such
amounts have been recorded as part of the Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying condensed
consolidated statements of operations. As of June 30, 201 1, the unamortized fair value of the options totaled $11,250.




SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the option. Because the
Comipany's employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in -
the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable smgle measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
During 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) launched the FASB ASC as the single source of authoritative

nongovernmental GAAP. The ASC was effective for interim and annual periods ending-after September 15, 2009. The ASC does not
change GAAP. Instead, it takes all individual pronouncements that currently comprise GAAP and reorganizes them into
approximately 90 accounting Topics, and displays all Topics using a consistent structure. Changes to the ASC subsequent to
September 30, 2009, are referred to as Accounting Standards Updates (“ASU”).

On June 30, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-01, “Topic 105 — Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, amendments based on
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 168 — The FASB Accounting Standard Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles.” This ASU amends the FASB ASC for the issuance of FASB Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 168, “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.” This ASU includes FASB SFAS No. 168 in its entirety. ASU 2009-01 was effective for interim and annual periods
ending after September 15, 2009. The adoption of ASU 2009-01 had no effect on the operating results or financial condition of the
Company.

The FASB issued ASC 810, “Non-Controlling Interests in:Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51). ASC
810 established accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary (previously referred to as minority
interests). ASC 810 also requires that a retained non-controlling interest upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary be initially measured
at its fair value. Upon adoption of ASC.810, the Company was required to report any non-controlling interests as a separate
component of consolidated stockholders’ equity. The Company was also required to present any net income or loss allocable to non-
controlling interests and net income or loss attributable to the stockholders of the Company separately in its consolidated statements of
operations, if significant. ASC 810 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after
January 1, 2009. ASC 810 requires retroactive adoption of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests.
All other requirements of ASC 810 are applied prospectively. The Company adopted ASC 810 and reclassified the non-controlling
interest in FFH as a separate component of consolidated stockholders’ equity on January 1, 2009. The adoption of ASC 810 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s results of operation or financial condition.

NOTE 4 - Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of maintenance parts and aviation fuel, which the Company sells to its customers. The Company also
maintains fuel inventories for commercial airlines, to which it charges into-plane fees when servicing commercial aircraft. ' A
summary of inventories as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is set forth in the following table:

June 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
 Parts inventory S T 8 s 8 10567
Fuel inventory 1SSt 90969
"‘Othermventory o o T 21,645 11303

Total inventory . $ ‘ 256,713 $ 207,947

Included in inventories are amounts held for third parties of $111,660 and $106,547 as of June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively, with an offsetting liability included as part of accrued expenses.



SAKER AVIATION SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' (UNAUDITED) o

NOTE 5 - Stockholders’ Equifv

Stock Options . L » o
Details of all options outstanding are presented in the table below:

Number of Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price
Balance, Jandary 1, 2011 PO s LT e e e 1,525,000 S - 022
- Granted o o - =
- Exefeised oo i o S - R : —
Forfeited : ' : (250,000) (0.50)
Balance, June 30, 2011 o ‘ 12750000 §$ - 016 ¢

Exercisable at June 30, 2011 L o o 675,000 § 0.14

On March 31, 2011, an opﬁon for 250,000-Shafes expired.
NOTE 6 — Related Parties

The law firm of Wachtel & Masyr, LLP provides certain legal services to the Company. William B. Wachtel, a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors, is a managing partner of this firm. During the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company
was billed approximately $1,000 and $77,300, respectively, for legal services. At June 30,2011 and December 31, 2010, the
Company has recorded in accounts payable an obligation for legal fees.to such firm of approximately $4,200 and $52,000,
respectively, related to legal services provided by such firm. .

Effective November 2008, the Company executed a management agreement with a company which has a non-controlling interest in a
subsidiary of the Company. The owners of this company include the children of a member of the Company’s Board of Directors. The
agreement requires a management fee of 10% of gross receipts of the subsidiary and a “success fee” of 50% of pre-tax profits; as such
term is defined in the management agreement. The non-controlling interest is one percent of the subsidiary of the Company and there
is no existing arrangement as to additional interests to be purchased in the future. Total fees in the six months ended June 30, 2011
and 2010 aggregated approximately $1,084,000 and $840,000, respectively. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company has recorded in
accrued expenses an obligation for these fees to the non-controlling interest of approximately $391,000 and $840,000, respectively.
As part of the fee arrangement under the management agreement, certain capital expenditures for the subsidiary are to be funded by
the non-controlling interest. The Company funded certain capital improvements aggregating approximately $719,000 in 2011 on
behalf of the non-controlling interest. This amount of capital improvements funded by the Company was deducted from amounts due
to the non-controlling interest and recorded as additional paid in capital. :

NOTE 7 - Litigation

From time to time, the Company may be a party to one or more claims or disputes which may result in litigation. The Company's
management does not, however, presently expect that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition or results of operations. : :

NOTE 8 — Subsequent Events

As further described in Note 2, Management’s Liquidity Plans, on July 20, 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with B
of A and terminated its financing arrangements with Birch Hill and EuroAmerican. - - . -

Effective August 15, 2011, the Company entered into a Redemption Agreement with the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary of the
Company. As part of this agreement, the non-controlling interest relinquished its membership interest in the subsidiary in return for
the repayment of the non-controlling interest’s capital account. Such consideration shall be paid on monthly basis in an amount equal
to (i) five percent (5%) of the subsidiary’s gross receipts plus-(ii) five percent (5%) of the subsidiary’s pre-tax profit.
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Item 2 - Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read together with the consolidated condensed financial statements and related notes
appearing elsewhere in this report. This Item 2 contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Undue
reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. Actual results may
differ materially from those included in such forward-looking statements. Factors which could cause actual results to differ materially
include those set forth at the end of this Item 2 under the heading "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward Looking Statements," as
well as those discussed elsewhere in this report and in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2010, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

OVERVIEW

Saker Aviation Services, Inc. (“we”, “us”, “our”) is a Nevada corporation, the common stock, $0.001 par value (the
“common stock™), of which is publicly traded on the over the counter bulletin board system under the symbol “SKAS.OB”. Through
our subsidiaries, we operate in the fixed base operation (“FBO”) segment of the general aviation industry, in which we serve as the
operator of a heliport FBO, two primarily fixed-wing aircraft FBOs and provide consulting services for a non-owned FBO facility.
FBOs provide ground-based services such as fueling and hangaring for general aviation, commercial, and military aircraft; aircraft
maintenance; and other miscellaneous services.

We were formed on January 17, 2003 (date of inception) as a proprietorship and were incorporated in Arizona on January 2,
2004. We became a public company as a result of a reverse merger transaction on August 20, 2004 with Shadows Bend Development,
Inc., an inactive public Nevada corporation which changed its name to FBO Air, Inc. On December 13, 2006, we changed our name
to FirstFlight, Inc. On September 2, 2009, we changed our name to Saker Aviation Services, Inc.

Our business activities are carried out at the Wilkes-Barre/Scranton (Pennsylvania) International Airpon, Garden City
(Kansas) Regional Airport, Downtown Manhattan (New York) Heliport, and at Niagara Falls (New York) International Airport where
we provide consulting services to the operator.

The FBO segment of the industry is highly fragmented - populated by, according to the National Air Transportation
Association (“NATA”), over 3,000 operators who serve customers at one or more of the over 3,000 airport facilities across the country
that have at least one paved 3,000-foot runway. The vast majority of these companies are single location operators. NATA
characterizes companies with operations at three or more airports as-“chains.” An operation with FBOs in at least two distinctive
regions of the United States is considered a “national” chain while multiple locations within a single region are “regional” chains.

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opeérations

Comparison of the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010.

REVENUE

Revenue increased by 40.7 percent to approximately $4,574,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2011 as compared with
corresponding prior-year period revenue of approximately $3,250,000. For the six months ended June 30, 2011, revenue increased by
32.9% to approximately $7,350,000 as compared with revenue of approximately $5,532,000 in the same period in the prior year.

For the three months ended June 30, 2011, revenue associated with the operation of the Downtown Manhattan Heliport
(“Heliport”) increased by 60.6% to approximately $2,784,000 as compared to approximately $1,733,000 in the prior year period.
Revenue associated with the sale of jet fuel, aviation gasoline and related items increased by 18.9 percent to approximately $1,610,000
as compared to the same period in the prior year. Revenue associated with maintenance activities decreased by 9.3 percent to
approximately $135,000 as compared to the same period in the prior year. Revenue associated with the leasing of aircraft and office
space along with the management of non-owned FBO facilities increased by 204.9 percent to approximately $45,000 in the three
months ended June 30, 2011 as compared to the same period in the prior year. .

. For the six months ended June 30, 2011; revenue associated with the operation of the Heliport increased 47.6%-to
approximately $4,131,000 as compared to the same period in the prior year. Revenue associated with the sale of jet fuel, aviation
gasoline and related items increased by 18.7 percent to approximately $2,888,000 as compared to the same period in the prior year.
Revenue associated with maintenance activities increased by 1.8 percent to approximately $270,000 as compared to the same period in
the prior year. Revenue associated with the leasing of aircraft and office space along with the management of non-owned FBO
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facilities increased by 76.8 percent to approximately $60,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2011 as compared to the same period in
the prior year.

The increase in revenue associated with the operation of the Heliport was primarily related to the introduction of fuel
services, which commenced in September 2010. Fuel revenue at the Heliport was approximately $812,000 and $1,140,000 for the
three months and six months ended June 30, 2011, respectively, and had no comparable revenue in the prior year periods.

The increases in revenue associated with the sale of jet fuel, aviation gasoline and related items were related to a combination
of comparable volume along with higher average fuel prices as compared with the prior year. We generally price our fuel products on
a fixed dollar margin basis. As the cost of fuel increases, the corresponding customer price increases as well. If volume is constant,
this methodology yields higher revenue but at comparable gross margins.

The changes in maintenance revenue were due to differing levels of both charges for labor services and for parts as compared
to each respective period in the prior year. The primary reason for the decreases in the three month period ending June 30, 2011, was
a generally lower level of activity associated with jet aircraft domiciled at the Pennsylvania facility.

- The increases in revenue associated with the leasing of aircraft and office space along with the management on non-owned
FBO facilities was primarily related to a one-time project executed on behalf of our non-owned FBO consulting client.

GROSS PROFIT

Total gross profit increased 27.9 percent to approximately $2,258,000 in the three months ended June 30, 2011 as compared
with approximately $1,766,000 in the three months ended June 30, 2010. Gross margin decreased to 49.4 percent in the three months
ended June 30, 2011 as compared to 54.3 percent in the same period in the prior year. The impact of fuel services at the Heliport
operation was a major factor in both the increase in gross profit and on the decrease in gross margin. Heliport fuel service gross
margin was lower than the remaining Heliport gross margin and, therefore, had a negative effect on overall gross margin.

Total gross profit increased 24.7 percent to approximately $3,477,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2011 as compared
with approximately $2,788,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2010. Gross margin decreased to 47.3 percent in the six months
ended June 30, 2011 as compared to 50.4 percent in the same period in the prior year. The impact of fuel services at the Heliport
operation was a major factor in both the increase in gross profit and on the decrease in gross margin. Heliport fuel service gross
margin was lower than the remaining Heliport gross margin and, therefore, had a negative effect on overall gross margin.

OPERATING EXPENSE

Selling, General and Administrative — FBO Operations

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A?) expenses associated with our FBO operations were approximately $1,684,000
in the three months ended June 30, 2011, an increase of approximately $385,000 or 29.7 percent as compared to the three months
ended June 30, 2010. SG&A increased at the Heliport as a result of the fuel services during the three months ended June 30, 2011 as
compared to no comparable activity in the same period during the prior year. SG&A associated with our FBO operations, as a
percentage of revenue, was 36.8 percent for the three months ended June 30, 2011 as compared with 40.0 percent in the corresponding
prior year period. S : ' e .

For the six months ended June 30, 2011, SG&A expenses associated with our FBO operations were approximately
$2,793,000, an increase of approximately $552,000 or 24.6 percent as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2010. SG&A
increased at the Heliport as a result of the fuel services during the three months ended June 30, 2011 as compared to no comparable
activity in the same period during the prior year. For the six months ended June 30, 2011, SG&A associated with our FBO operations,
as a percentage of revenue, was 38.0 percent as compared with 40.5 percent in the corresponding prior year period.

Selling, _General» and Admir_;istrative — Cogporéte Operations

Corporate expense was approximately $48,000 and $131,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011, respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately $21,000 and $46,000, respectively, as compared with the corresponding prior year periods.
The decreases in the three and six months ended June 30, 2011, were driven largely by lower professional fees related to the transition
to a new, independent registered accounting firm and the elimination of certain legal and litigation settlement fees as compared to the
prior year periods.
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OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -

Operating income in the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 was approximately $525,000 and $552,000, respectively,
as compared to operating income of approximately $399,000 and $368,000 in the same periods in 2010. Improvements to operating
income were driven by a combination of greater levels of levels of revenue and gross profit, which counterbalanced higher non-
corporate operating expenses, as described above.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization was approximately $167,000.and $76,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The increase was largely attributed to the depreciation recorded in connection with the.capital improvement program at
the Heliport.

Interest Income/Expense

Interest income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 was approximately $9,200 and $18,800, respectively, as
compared to $330 and $630 in three and six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively. Interest expense for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2011 was approximately $39,200 and $78,200, respectively, as‘compared to approxunately $45,500 and $88,200,
respectively, in the same periods in 2010.

Other Income/Expense

Other expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 was approximately $43,600 and $76,800, respectively and is
attributed largely to mumc1pal taxes and fees. Federal and state: net operating loss carryforwards have offset current federal and state
income taxes. : v

Net Income Per Share

Net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 was approximately $276,000 and $240,000, respectively, as
compared to net income of approximately $264,000 and $189,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010, respectively. The
unprovements were as a result of the 1tems dlscussed above

Basic and diluted net income per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2011 was $0.01. Basic and diluted net
income per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2010 was $0.01.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of June 30, 2011, we had cash of $995,492 and a working capital surplus of $720,451. We generated revenue of
approximately $7,350,000 and net income of approximately $240,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2011. For the six months
ended June 30, 2011, cash flows included net cash provided by operating activities of $206,852, net cash used in investing activities of
$819,639, and net cash used in financing activities of $59,128.

On July 20, 2011, we entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Bank of America. The Loan Agreement
provides us with (i) a revolving line of credit agreement (the “B of A Credit Facility”) in the amount of $650,000, and (ii) a $318,198
term loan facility (the “B of A Term Loan).

The B of A Credit Facility, which was fully extended at the filing of this report, requires interest payments based on
outstanding balances at an interest rate of 30-day LIBOR plus 300 basis points, and is annually renewable at Bank of America’s
option. An annual fee of 0.50% is incurred against the total availability of the B of A Credit Facility. The B of A Term Loan is
amortized over 48 months at an interest rate of 4.2%. A one-time origination fee of 1.0% was incurred for the B of A Term Loan.

We used $500,000 of the proceeds from the B of A Credit Facility to repay the revolving line of credit agreement (the “Prior
Credit Facility”) dated March 3, 2009 and made jointly and severally by us and Airborne, Inc., a former subsidiary that was divested
in March of 2009 (“Airborne”), in favor of Birch Hill Capital, LLC (“Birch Hill”). The Prior Credit Facility required .interest
payments based on outstanding balances at an interest rate of prime plus 350 basis points (6.75% as of June 30, 2011) and was payable
upon demand by Birch Hill.

The use of proceeds of the B of A Term Loan was the repayment of the remaining principal that resulted when, on May 7,
2010, the Prior Credit Facility was modified to reduce the maximum line of credit to $500,000 and to reclassify the remaining
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$500,000 into a promissory note that provided for a 36-month amortization with a 24-month balloon payment of outstanding principal-
and interest at 7% per year. » B : o

We used $150,000 of the procééds from the B of A Credit Facility, albng with $600,000 in cash on hand, to repay 2 Loan
Agreement. with EuroAmerican Investment Corp. (“EuroAmerican”), pursuant to which EuroAmerican loaned the Company an
aggregate of $750,000. , : : A

As a result of our repayment of the Prior Credit Facility and EuroAmerican loan, such arrangements have been terminated
and Airborne is no longer a co-borrower. The warrants issued to Birch Hill in connection with its financing event remain in place.

We are party to a concession agreement with the City of New York for the operation of the Downtown Manhattan Heliport
(the “Heliport”). Under the concession agreement, we must pay the greater of 18% of the. first $5 million in program year gross
receipts and 25% of gross receipts in excess of $5 million or minimum annual guaranteed payments that began at $1.2 million in Year
1 of the agreement, which commenced on November 1, 2008, and increase to approximately $1.7 million in Year 10 of the agreement,
which- expires on October 31, 2018. During the six months ended ‘June 30, 2011, we incurred with the City of New York
approximately $726,000 in concession fees, which is included in the cost of revenue. We also agreed, pursuant to this agreement, to
make certain capital improvements and safety code compliance upgrades to the Heliport in the amount of $1,000,000 within two years
following the receipt of building permits for the capital improvements and another. $1,000,000 by the end of the fifth year of the
Agreement. At June 30, 2011, we had made approximately $1,840,000 in capital improvements at the Heliport pursuant to the
concession agreement. We believe that cash flow from the operation of the Heliport will be sufficient to satisfy the minimum annual
guarantee and to fund the remaining capital improvements as required under the agreement. .

Cash from Operating Activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2011, net cash provided by operating activities was $332,267. This amount included an
increase in operating cash related to net income of $239,842. and additions for the following items: (i) depreciation and amortization,
$166,565; (ii) management fees recorded through additional paid in capital, $708,382; (iii) stock-based compensation expense,
$3,498; (iv) accounts payable, $172,509, (v) customer deposits, $3,539; (vi) deferred income taxes, $176,000; and (vii) loss on
disposition of equipment, $2,799. The increase in cash used in. operating activities in 2011 was offset by the following decreases: §)]
accounts receivable, $285,222, (i) inventories, $48,766; (iii) prepaid expenses, $46,779; (iv) deposits, $2,118; and (v) accrued
expenses, $757,982. For the six months ended June 30, 2010, net.cash provided by operating activities was $1,012,970. This amount
included an increase in operating cash related to net income of $188,921 and additions for the following items: (i) depreciation and
amortization, $76,347; (ii) stock-based compensation expense, $7,784; (iii) inventories, $24,956; (iv) accounts payable, $246,192, (v)
customer deposits, $60,618, (vi) accrued expenses, $473,204; (vii) security deposits, $50,126; and (vii) management fees recorded
through additional paid in capital, $474,832. The increase in cash used in operating activities in 2010 was offset by the following
decreases: (i) accounts receivable, $394,124, (ii) prepaid expenses, $145,129, and (iii) deposits, $50,757.

Cash from Investing Activities

. For the six months ended June 30, 2011, net cash used in investing activities was $819,639 and was attributable to the
purchase of property and equipment of $931,196 offset by (i) the payment of notes receivable of $46,310; and (ii) proceeds from the
disposition of equipment of $65,247. For the six months ended June 30; 2010, net cash used in investing activities was $735,313 and
was attributable to the purchase of property and equipment of $790,458 offset by the payment of notes receivable of $55,145.

Cash from Financing Activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2011, net cash used in financing activities was $59,128, consisting of the repayment of
notes payable of $47,139 and purchase of common stock, retired, of $11,989. For the six months ended June 30, 2010, net cash
provided by financing activities was $58,611, consisting entirely of the repayment of notes payable of $58,611.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

. During 2009, the FASB launched the FASB ASC as the single source of authoritative nongovernmental GAAP. The ASC
was effective for interim and annual periods ending September 15, 2009. - The ASC does-not change GAAP. . Instead, it takes all
individual pronouncements that currently comprise GAAP and reorganizes them into approximately 90 accounting Topics, and
displays all Topics using a consistent structure. Changes to the ASC subsequent to September 30, 2009, are referred to as Accounting
Standards Updates (“ASUs™).
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On June 30, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-01, “Topic 105 — Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, amendments
based on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 168 — The FASB Accounting Standard Codification and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” This ASU amends the FASB ASC for the issuance of FASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS”) No. 168, “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.” This ASU includes FASB SFAS No. 168 in its entirety. ASU 2009-01 was effective for interim and annual
periods ending after September 15, 2009. The adoption of ASU 2009-01 had no effect on our operating results or financial condition.

The FASB issued ASC 810, “Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an amendment of ARB No.
51). ASC 810 established accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary (previously referred to as
minority interests). ASC 810 also requires that a retained non-controlling interest upon the deconsolidation of a subsidiary be initially
measured at its fair value. Upon adoption of ASC 810, we were required to report any non-controlling interests as a separate
component of consolidated stockholders’ equity. We were also required to present any net income or loss allocable to non-controlling
interests and net income or loss attributable to our stockholders separately in its consolidated statements of operations, if significant.
ASC 810 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after January 1, 2009. ASC 810
requires retroactive adoption of the presentation and disclosure requirements for existing minority interests. All other requirements of
ASC 810 are applied prospectively. We adopted ASC 810 and reclassified the non-controlling interest in our Heliport subsidiary as a
separate component of consolidated stockholders’ equity on January 1, 2009. The adoptlon of ASC 810 did not have a material
impact on our results of operation or financial condition.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained in this report may contain information that includes or is based upon "forward-looking statements" relating to
our business. These forward-looking statements represent management's current judgment and assumptions, and can be identified by
the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Forward-looking statements are frequently accompanied by the use
of such words as "anticipates," "plans," "believes," "expects," "projects,” "intends," and similar expressions. Such forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors; including, but not limited to, those relating to:

= our ability to secure the additional debt or equity financing, if required, to execute our business plan;.

=  our ab111ty to 1dent1fy negotlate and complete the acquisition of targeted operators consistent with our business
- plan; . o B

= existing or new competitors consolidating operators ahead of us;

=  our ab111ty to attract new personnel or retain ex1st1ng personnel which would adversely affect implementation of our
overall business strategy.

Any one of these or other risks, uncertainties, other factors, or any inaccurate assumptions may cause actual results to be materially
different from those described herein or elsewhere by us. Undue reliance should not be replaced on any such forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date they were made. Certain of these risks, uncertainties, and other factors are described in
greater detail in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 under the heading “Risk Factors”, in Item
1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and in other filings we make with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Subsequent
written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or to persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety
by the cautionary statements set forth above and elsewhere in our reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We
expressly disclaim any intent or obligation to update any forward-looking statements.

Item 3 — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Not applicable.
Item 4 — Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Management, including our President, Chief Executive Officer and principal financial officer (the same executive is both our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer), has evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act

Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on this evaluation,
our President and Chief Executive concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of such date.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter covered by this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 6. Exhibits

‘Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit
311 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Ceriification of President and Chief Executive Officer (pf'incipal executive and
' principal financial officer). *
32.1. Section 1350 Certification. *
o ** 10'1':.INS i ' XBRL Instail_‘ce Document

** 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

**10LCAL ~ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

** 101.DEF - XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

** 101.LAB o XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

** 101.PRE v XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith

** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the information in this exhibit shall not be deemed to be “filed” for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, and shall not be
incorporated by reference into any registration statement, prospectus or other document filed under the Securities Act of 1933,
or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filings.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reglstrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. .

Saker Aviation Services, Inc.

Date: August 14, 2011 By: /s/ Ronald J. Ricciardi

Ronald J. Ricciardi,
President & Chief Executive Officer
(principal financial officer)
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